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T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  VA L U E  F U N D
Letter to Shareholders

D E A R  S H A R E H O L D E R S :

S A Y I N G  G O O D B Y E  T O  A  V E R Y  B A D  Y E A R

The magnitude of global equity market declines in 2008 was staggering. U.S.
equity markets were hit hard in 2008 with the S&P 500® Index declining 37%
– its largest single-year decline in 71 years and the third worst year in its his-
tory (in 1931 the S&P 500® Index lost 47.07% and in 1937 the Index
declined 38.59%).  International equity markets, however, provided no refuge
from the fallout of the growing credit and economic crises as the MSCI World
Ex-U.S.® Index experienced steeper losses than U.S. markets, falling 45.21%
for the year.

Although markets had absorbed a series of shocks throughout the year, none
proved more devastating than the September 15, 2008 announcement that
Lehman Brothers, the 158-year old investment firm, had filed for Chapter 11
bankruptcy protection. The collapse of Lehman Brothers set off a chain reac-
tion that wiped out the value of Lehman’s equity and the claims of its debt
holders.  Unfortunately, Lehman’s debt was widely held throughout global
financial markets by insurance companies, money market funds, institutional
and individual investors, and Lehman’s collapse triggered fears among all
types of investors of a systemic financial failure.  The panic and fear caused by
the Lehman bankruptcy exerted additional pressure on an already-nervous
stock market resulting in significant single-day declines throughout October
and November.  By November 20, 2008, the S&P 500® Index had fallen to a
level almost 52% below the highest level it had achieved a little more than
one year earlier on October 11, 2007.
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T H E O L S T E I N A L L C A P VA L U E F U N D
Letter to Shareholders

D E A R F E L L O W S H A R E H O L D E R S :

G E N E R A T I N G I N V E S T M E N T R E T U R N S I N A
L O W - G R O W T H E N V I R O N M E N T

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, Class C shares of the Olstein All Cap
Value Fund (the “Fund”) appreciated 0.54%. During the same twelve month
period the S&P 500® Total Return Index appreciated 5.45% and the Russell
3000® Total Return Index appreciated 3.84%. Since the inception of the
Fund in the fall of 1995 (almost 17 years ago), the Class C shares have appre-
ciated at an annualized rate of 9.46% versus 7.13% and 7.20% for the S&P
500® Total Return Index and Russell 3000® Total Return Index, respective-
ly, over the same time period.

Our Leaders
The stocks which contributed positively to performance for the twelve-month
reporting period included Apple, TJX Companies, Pet Smart, Home Depot
and General Electric. Although the majority of investors may see Apple as a
“growth” story, we consider Apple a value play based on company fundamen-
tals. With excess cash of approximately $124 per share and an estimated abil-
ity to generate free cash flow of $48 per share in 2012, Apple is currently trad-
ing at approximately 9½ times free cash flow despite its strong performance
during the fiscal year. Pet Smart is a good example of a lesser-known, mid-sized
company that not only withstood the economic downturn but grew at above

T H E O L S T E I N A L L C A P V A L U E F U N D

The performance data quoted represents past performance and does not guarantee
future results. The Olstein All Cap Value Fund’s Class C average annual return for
the one-year, five-year, and ten-year periods ended June 30, 2012, assuming rein-
vestment of dividends and capital gain distributions and deduction of the Olstein All
Cap Value Fund’s maximum CDSC during the one-year period, was -0.46%,
-3.88%, and 3.03%, respectively. Per the Fund’s prospectus dated October 31,
2011, the expense ratio for the Olstein All Cap Value Fund Class C was 2.30%.
Performance and expense ratios for other share classes will vary due to differences in
sales charge structure and class expenses. The investment return and principal value
of an investment will fluctuate so that an investor’s shares, when redeemed, may be
worth more or less than their original cost. Current performance may be lower or
higher than performance quoted. To obtain performance data current to the most
recent month end please go to our website at www.olsteinfunds.com.

Performance data quoted represents past performance. Past performance does 
not guarantee future results. All performance stated in this document 
assumes the reinvestment of dividends and capital gains. We caution 
shareholders that we can never predict or assure future returns on 
investments. The investment return and principal value of an investment 
with our Funds will fluctuate over time so that your shares, when 
redeemed, may be with more or less  than their original cost. Current 
performance may be lower or higher than the performance data quoted. 
Click the following links for the annual expense ratios and standardized 
performance current to the most recent quarter and month end periods for 
The Olstein All Cap Value Fund.

http://www.olsteinfunds.com/funds/olstein-all-cap-value-fund/more-investment-returns
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F U N D  P E R F O R M A N C E

Operating under the harsh market conditions that prevailed during the last six
months of calendar year 2008, Class C shares of the Olstein All Cap Value
Fund had a return of -31.46% compared to a return of -28.50% for the S&P
500® Index.  The Fund’s underperformance during the last half of the year was
primarily due to its overweight positions in the Financial and Information
Technology sectors relative to the S&P 500® Index.  When panic selling dom-
inates markets as it did in October and November of this past year, rational
considerations of a company’s business model, its ability to generate free cash
flow and ultimately its valuation become casualties to the overwhelming desire
to get out of the market and move to cash.  Nowhere was the panic felt more
keenly than in the Financial sector as investors doubted the stability of most
financial institutions and prepared for a lengthy economic downturn by pun-
ishing most financial companies.

P O R T F O L I O  A C T I V I T Y

While few, if any, well-regarded professional money managers escaped the
sharp market declines of 2008, we take no comfort in being part of a select
group of investors with above average long-term track records whose portfo-
lios declined by a magnitude that greatly exceeded past experience.  However,
it may provide some solace to our shareholders that the panic selling in the
latter part of 2008 also eroded the market values of well-established, high-

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

The performance data quoted represents past performance and does not guarantee
future results.  The performance discussed pertains to the Olstein All Cap Value
Fund’s Class C shares and assumes no redemptions.  The returns mentioned do not
reflect deduction of the Olstein All Cap Value Fund’s 1% maximum contingent
deferred sales charge (“CDSC”) for Class C shares imposed when an investor
redeems Class C shares within the first year of purchase.  The Olstein All Cap Value
Fund’s Class C average annual return for the ten-year, five-year, and one-year peri-
ods ended 12/31/08, assuming reinvestment of dividends and capital gain distributions
and deduction of the Olstein All Cap Value Fund’s maximum CDSC during the one-
year period, was 3.36%, -6.65%, and -44.36%, respectively.  Per the Fund’s
10/31/08 prospectus, the expense ratio for the Olstein All Cap Value Fund Class C
was 2.23%.  Performance and expense ratios for other share classes will vary due to
differences in sales charge structure and class expenses.  The investment return and
principal value of an investment will fluctuate so that an investor’s shares, when
redeemed, may be worth more or less than their original cost.  Current performance
may be lower or higher than performance quoted.  To obtain performance data cur-
rent to the most recent month end, please go to our website at www.olsteinfunds.com.
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quality companies with strong balance sheets to levels not seen in more than
a decade.  After the collapse of Lehman, we expected a rapid deleveraging of
the financial system to take place, ultimately compromising the business mod-
els of some of our financial sector holdings.  We immediately began to sell
those companies with compromised business models and seized the opportu-
nity to purchase or add to positions in what we believe are well-run, well-cap-
italized business icons, such as Microsoft, Walt Disney Company, Johnson &
Johnson, IBM, Coca-Cola, Intel, Cisco, and Pitney Bowes.  These high qual-
ity companies were selling at unprecedented low multiples of free cash flow
and in certain cases were selling at prices that were lower than ten years ago.
In addition, our new purchases had extremely liquid balance sheets (in some
cases representing billions of dollars in excess cash).

We never stand still and this was especially true during the last half of 2008.
As we have done in the past, rather than dwell on our mistakes, we re-exam-
ined every portfolio holding to retest our investment thesis under the new and
challenging environment.  We eliminated the stocks of companies that we
believed did not offer an optimal risk-reward tradeoff or whose upside poten-
tial was severely compromised by the deleveraging scenario we expected to
unfold.  We initiated positions or increased holdings in companies that we
believed were automatically, yet unfairly, penalized by the market in reaction
to current economic conditions, but, in our opinion, had unique business mod-
els, strong balance sheets, and the ability to withstand a recession and were
selling at a material discount to our determination of private market value.

Throughout the year that ended December 31, 2008 we made significant
changes to the portfolio, most notably we reduced the number of Consumer
Discretionary companies in the portfolio from 20 at year-end 2007, to 13 on
December 31, 2008.  We eliminated companies that we believed were not
well positioned to ride out a sustained recession and initiated positions in
companies we believe have the balance sheet strength and competitive
advantage to perform during an economic downturn.  Although we reduced
the portfolio’s overall exposure to the Consumer Discretionary sector, we con-
tinue to have a meaningful commitment to companies that sell economically
priced goods and should continue to generate free cash flow despite the tough
economic environment.  We expect consumer expenditures to pick-up by the
fourth quarter of 2009 and believe Consumer Discretionary sector stocks
should reflect the expected pick-up six to nine months earlier.

We made important changes to the Fund’s Financial sector holdings, reducing
the number of such holdings from 12 at year-end 2007 to 5 on December 31,
2008. Immediately prior to the start of the fourth quarter, following the collapse
of Lehman Brothers, the Fund substantially reduced its exposure to Financials
sector stocks by eliminating its positions in the brokerage firms such as Goldman

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D
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Sachs Group, Merrill Lynch & Co., Morgan Stanley and Charles Schwab.  The
Fund continued to reduce its Financial sector exposure at the start of the fourth
quarter by liquidating its remaining holdings in credit card issuer American
Express, private equity and alternative asset manager, Blackstone Group, and
reducing its position in Citigroup.  The Fund ended the year with an under-
weight allocation in the Financial sector – 9.48% of Fund assets compared to an
S&P 500 Index weighting of 13.29%.  We further reduced the Fund’s Financial
sector weighting during the first three weeks of 2009 as we eliminated our
remaining position in Citigroup after becoming concerned about the implica-
tions of Citigroup’s lowering its ownership position in Smith Barney.

Other noteworthy portfolio changes include increasing our exposure to the
Health Care sector – from 9.51% on June 30, 2008 to 16.79% on December
31, 2008 by increasing allocations to existing holdings, including Johnson &
Johnson, Quest Diagnostics and Zimmer Holdings.  We also initiated posi-
tions in Charles River Laboratories, Hospira, and Thermo Fisher Scientific.

Throughout 2008 we carefully managed the Fund’s cash (and cash equivalent)
position, not only out of caution, but also to provide the means to take advan-
tage of buying opportunities that turbulent markets often present.  We increased
the Fund’s cash (and cash equivalent) position from 3.78% on December 31,
2007 to an average of 9% to 12% during the fourth quarter of 2008.

One of the developments we saw unfold during the second half of the year,
which accelerated after the collapse of Lehman Brothers, was the indiscrimi-
nate “forced” selling of positions by hedge funds. Many hedge funds were
using leverage in combination with derivatives to control volatility while at
the same time producing above-average returns by investing in areas of spec-
ulative excesses (recently: oil and gas stocks, commodities, and commodity
stocks, sub-prime mortgages, overseas construction companies, etc.) As has
happened many times in the past, non-recurring low probability events
(recently, the surprise bankruptcy of Lehman Brothers and implications of
their massive debt failure to the overall system which included money market
funds) occur from time to time which changes normal trading patterns and
relationships. The unexpected changes turn the cocktail of leverage and
derivatives into weapons of mass destruction as banks call in their hedge fund
loans and everybody runs for the same exit door to unwind the same bets. The
calling in of loans to hedge funds, in combination with hedge fund investors
pounding on the doors for withdrawals, resulted in forced liquidations includ-
ing having to sell the highest quality most liquid companies at bargain base-
ment prices in order to raise cash.  We utilized the Fund’s cash reserve we had
built up during the year to take advantage of the panic selling to buy many of
the well-run, well capitalized companies (many of which we previously men-
tioned) at price levels we had not seen in more than ten years.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D
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V O L A T I L I T Y ,  L E V E R A G E ,  P O N Z I  S C H E M E S  
A N D  K N O W I N G  W H A T  Y O U  O W N

As 2008 moves further into history, it will provide a number of valuable les-
sons for all investors.  We believe the great mistakes of 2008 – whether it’s the
failure of CDO/CMO structures to protect an investor against rapidly accel-
erating mortgage default rates, or the unchecked use of leverage by hedge
funds to amplify bets on commodities, or the unrealistic promise of low
volatility and consistent investment returns that enticed investors of all
stripes to invest $50 billion in history’s greatest Ponzi scheme – reinforce two
basic principles of investing: (1) know what you own and (2) understand how
its works.  We believe 2009 will be the year that investors shun gimmickry
and the manufactured distinctions between types of investments or approach-
es and instead, focus on the basics of good equity investing – company valua-
tions based on free cash flow and sound balance sheets.

In our letter to shareholders for the first quarter of 2007 titled, Controlling
Volatility – A High Wire Act without a Net (dated May 21, 2007), we discussed
the increasingly blurred distinction between risk – the permanent impairment
of capital – and volatility – extreme and often unexpected short-term price
movements in the price of a stock – as well as the pitfalls of “misguided
attempts” to control short-term volatility in the name of controlling risk.  We
concluded that many of the sophisticated strategies developed by Wall Street
to control short-term volatility, in an attempt to allay investors’ fear of risk,
actually subject the investor to additional risks that may be of a greater mag-
nitude than the risks associated with the short-term volatility the investor
sought to avoid! When we sounded these warnings almost two years ago, we
did so because we believed that most hedge fund investors, many hedge fund
product sponsors, and even some hedge fund managers did not truly under-
stand how these instruments could function under extreme market condi-
tions. In our opinion these investors, promoters and managers failed to grasp
how a low probability economic or cataclysmic event could create a market
shock that would result in leveraged and/or hedged positions moving in
unpredicted directions relative to each other.

Needless to say, 2008 was a year of many market shocks that resulted in
unprecedented permanent loss of capital, exacerbated by the excessive use of
leverage and misguided attempts to control risk.  It was also the year that
exposed history’s greatest Ponzi scheme, a scheme that relied on the unrealis-
tic promise of low double-digit returns with low volatility as its primary lure
(a promise rooted in the same erroneous belief that investment returns can be
enhanced, while at the same time, controlling risk).  We believe that before
investing in equity securities or determining the level of commitment to equi-
ties in a broader portfolio of investments, an investor must first assess his level

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D
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of risk tolerance – that is, the ability to absorb a permanent loss of capital.
The risks taken are even more important to assess in equity-type investments
promising low volatility. Since every equity investment may not perform as
expected, an investor must consider whether his financial and psychological
condition allow him to ride out a market downturn or the falling price of a
security without engaging in panic selling.

T H E  L O G I C  O F  V A L U E  I N V E S T I N G  
I N  D I F F I C U L T  E C O N O M I C  T I M E S

A prime tenet of our philosophy is that there is a high correlation between
above-average long-term performance and the ability to avoid material errors.
We firmly believe that our emphasis on assessing downside risk before deter-
mining upside potential is more critical in today’s environment as we face a
crisis of confidence in our financial institutions and the prospect of a pro-
longed economic downturn.  While we initially underestimated the impact of
rapid deleveraging on the cash flow generation and earnings potential in cer-
tain of our Financial sector holdings, once we realized our mistake, we were
quick to sell those holdings and use the proceeds to invest in well-capitalized
companies we believed were the victims of market-wide panic selling.  After
liquidating those Financial sector stocks with doubtful prospects, we believe
that we now have a portfolio of strong, well-run companies expected to over-
come the pessimism that currently masks their ability to build long-term
shareholder value.  Faced with an uncertain future, perhaps it would be help-
ful to discuss the ways that we believe our approach to valuing companies
should serve us well during tough economic times.

We are value investors because we believe in the logic of value investing; of
buying the common stocks of good businesses at material discounts to their
intrinsic value.  We value companies based on their ability to generate free
cash flow and our approach requires that we not only develop a thorough
understanding of how each company’s operations generate sustainable free
cash flow (know how it works) but also requires that we answer a series of ques-
tions about the company’s business model, its strategy, its future prospects and
its management (know what you own).  We develop a thorough understand-
ing of each company through two overlapping analytical approaches: a bot-
tom-up fundamental analysis of financial statements – focusing on the compa-
ny’s balance sheet, income statement and cash flow statement and an ongoing
forensic analysis of a company’s financial statements, regulatory filings and
other disclosures.  In addition to the financial statements previously men-
tioned, we focus on a company’s 10K, 10Q, proxy filings, annual reports, pub-
lic announcements and other regulatory filings.  We assess management by the
decisions they have made as reflected in the financial statements and do not
engage in interviews with management via personal visits or the telephone.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D



The objective of our fundamental analysis is to understand the company’s
business model and how a company’s operations generate free cash flow.  We
also want to determine the level of ongoing investment that is required to
maintain or grow the company’s free cash flow and ultimately how much of
the cash generated by a company’s operations will be returned to us as
investors.  The objective of our forensic analysis is to determine if a compa-
ny’s accounting policies and practices reflect economic reality; to identify and
make accounting adjustments that eliminate management’s reporting bias and
to identify positive or negative factors that may affect future free cash flow.
We believe our approach provides us with the necessary knowledge to judge
the likely success of a company’s strategy, the sustainability of its performance
and the quality of its management team.  At no time is this process more cru-
cial than during difficult economic times when management’s decisions can
enhance or harm a company’s long-term prospects.

As pessimism in markets continues to drag down equity valuations, it is
important to identify those companies that have maintained a balance sheet
discipline that eschews material leverage; have honed their operations to pro-
tect (or in some cases expand) margins; and have built strategic cash balances
that can be used for favorable acquisitions or to fund initiatives that build
profitable market share.  The Fund’s portfolio consists of companies that, we
believe currently meet the tests of financial strength and management acu-
men required by the current economic environment.  Not only do the major-
ity of the Fund’s portfolio holdings have healthy cash balances (in many cases
the cash on company balance sheets is equal to or greater than 50% of cur-
rent liabilities; for approximately 20% of the Fund’s equity investments, cash
on company balance sheets is equal to or greater than 100% of current liabil-
ities), but these companies have also kept their cash flows healthy by avoid-
ing the impulse to cut operations indiscriminately.  More importantly, how-
ever, the management of many of the Fund’s holdings intend to pursue strate-
gies during the economic downturn that they believe will enhance their mar-
ket share and standing as the eventual economic recovery unfolds.

C O N C L U S I O N

It is our opinion that the current climate, created by abnormal and temporary
conditions, and characterized by low stock prices, should result in higher
future rates of return.  The credit crisis will end and the housing market will
stabilize, but no one will ring the bell to alert investors to these positive devel-
opments.  The market is a discounting mechanism.  While past performance
is not necessarily indicative of future results, it is noteworthy that the seeds of
past periods of relative outperformance were sown during volatile and
extremely emotional down markets in 1998 and 2002. The bottom of a bear
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market by definition is the point of collective maximum negative sentiment
and activity.  We have never figured out a method of predicting a market bot-
tom, but we can say that the negativity at the current juncture is at extreme
levels.  As value investors, we believe in having a long-term horizon in an
environment that is maniacally focused on short-term events. We believe that
our long-term horizon, in conjunction with our emphasis on an inferential
analysis of financial statements, should provide the Fund with an advantage
in the current negative environment.

We appreciate your trust in us and remind you that our money is invested
alongside yours.  We wish you a happy, healthy and prosperous 2009.

Sincerely,

Robert A. Olstein Eric R. Heyman
Chief Investment Officer Co-Portfolio Manager
Head Portfolio Manager

The above commentary represents the opinion of the Manager and is subject to
change.  It is not intended to be a forecast of future events, a guarantee of future
results, or investment advice.  This information should be preceded or accompanied
by a current prospectus, which contains more complete information, including
investment objectives, risks and charges and expenses of the Olstein Funds and
should be read carefully before investing.  A current prospectus may be obtained by
calling (800) 799-2113 or by visiting the Fund’s website at www.olsteinfunds.com.

The S&P 500® Index is an unmanaged index created by Standard & Poor’s
Corporation that includes a representative sample of 500 leading companies in lead-
ing industries of the U.S. economy and is considered to represent the U.S. stock-
market performance in general.  The S&P 500® Index is not an investment product
available for purchase.  Index returns do not reflect any management fees, transac-
tion costs or expenses.

The MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital International) World Ex-U.S.® Index is a free
float-adjusted, market capitalization index that is designed to measure global market
equity performance of the entire developed world less the United States.  The MSCI
World Ex-U.S.® Index is not an investment product available for purchase.  Index
returns do not reflect any management fees, transaction costs or expenses.

For a complete listing of the Olstein All Cap Value Fund’s portfolio holdings, please
see the Schedule of Investments starting on page 16. The references to securities are
not buy or sell recommendations. The references are intended to be descriptive
examples of the Fund’s investment philosophy. Do not make investments based on
the preceding securities referenced.



Not FDIC insured / Not bank-guaranteed / May lose value.  Distributed by Olstein
Capital Management, L.P. Member FINRA

The following chart illustrates the growth, on a quarterly basis, of a hypo-
thetical $10,000 investment made in the Olstein All Cap Value Fund’s Class
C share at the Olstein All Cap Value Fund’s inception date of September 21,
1995. (with dividends and capital gain distributions reinvested but no deduc-
tion of taxes on reinvested distributions – see “Details”)

Value of Shares Owned, Value of Shares Owned,
If Initial Investment If Initial Investment 

Date was $10,000 Date was $10,000_____________________________ _____________________________
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9/21/95 $10,000
9/30/95 10,010

12/31/95 10,261
3/31/96 10,882
6/30/96 11,462
9/30/96 11,713

12/31/96 12,760
3/31/97 13,327
6/30/97 14,602
9/30/97 17,250

12/31/97 17,205
3/31/98 19,851
6/30/98 18,468
9/30/98 15,499

12/31/98 19,788
3/31/99 20,717
6/30/99 25,365
9/30/99 23,675

12/31/99 26,692
3/31/00 28,170
6/30/00 28,899
9/30/00 30,596

12/31/00 30,142
3/31/01 30,207
6/30/01 36,192
9/30/01 28,213

12/31/01 35,340
3/31/02 38,259

6/30/02 33,797
9/30/02 25,870

12/31/02 28,529
3/31/03 26,226
6/30/03 31,448
9/30/03 33,797

12/31/03 38,853
3/31/04 40,870
6/30/04 41,297
9/30/04 39,043

12/31/04 43,146
3/31/05 42,640
6/30/05 42,302
9/30/05 43,749

12/31/05 44,350
3/31/06 46,566
6/30/06 44,242
9/30/06 46,836

12/31/06 50,755
3/31/07 51,862
6/30/07 55,536
9/30/07 53,029

12/31/07 49,012
3/31/08 42,447
6/30/08 40,189
9/30/08 38,452

12/31/08 27,545
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Details
The performance data quoted represents past performance and does not guarantee
future results. The above chart pertains to the Olstein All Cap Value Fund’s Class
C shares, and assumes no redemptions. The returns mentioned do not reflect deduc-
tion of the Olstein All Cap Value Fund’s 1% maximum contingent deferred sales
charge (“CDSC”) for Class C shares imposed when an investor redeems Class C
shares within the first year of purchase. The Olstein All Cap Value Fund’s Class C
average annual return for the ten-year, five-year, and one-year periods ended
12/31/08, assuming reinvestment of dividends and capital gain distributions and
deduction of the Olstein All Cap Value Fund’s maximum CDSC during the one-
year period, was 3.36%, -6.65%, and -44.36%, respectively. Per the Fund’s
10/31/08 prospectus, the expense ratio for the Olstein All Cap Value Fund Class C
was 2.23%. Performance and expense ratios for other share classes will vary due to
differences in sales charge structure and class expenses.

The investment return and principal value of an investment will fluctuate so that an
investor’s shares, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than their original cost.
Current performance may be lower or higher than performance quoted. To obtain
performance data current to the most recent month end, please go to our website at
www.olsteinfunds.com.

Not FDIC insured / Not bank-guaranteed / May lose value.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D
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The Olstein All Cap Value Fund
Expense Example as of December 31, 2008 (Unaudited)

As a shareholder of the Fund, you incur two types of costs: (1) transaction
costs, including sales charges (loads) on purchase payments or contingent
deferred sales charges on redemptions; if any; and (2) ongoing costs, includ-
ing management fees; distribution fees (12b-1); and other Fund expenses.
This Example is intended to help you understand your ongoing costs (in dol-
lars) of investing in the Fund and to compare these costs with the ongoing
costs of investing in other mutual funds.  The Example is based on an invest-
ment of $1,000 invested at the beginning of the period and held for the entire
period, July 1, 2008 – December 31, 2008.

Actual Expenses The following table provides information about actual
account values and actual expenses.  You will be assessed fees for outgoing
wire transfers, returned checks and stop payment orders at prevailing rates
charged by U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC, the Fund’s transfer agent.  If
you request that a redemption be made by a wire transfer, currently a $15 fee
is charged by the Fund’s transfer agent.  IRA accounts will be charged a $15
annual maintenance fee and a $25 distribution fee.  The following example
includes, but is not limited to, management fees, distribution fees, fund
accounting, custody and transfer agent fees.  However, the following example
does not include portfolio trading commissions and related expenses.  You
may use the information in this table, together with the amount you invest-
ed, to estimate the expenses that you paid over the period.  Simply divide your
account value by $1,000 (for example, an $8,600 account value divided by
$1,000 = 8.6), then multiply the result by the number in the table under the
heading entitled “Expenses Paid During Period’’ to estimate the expenses you
paid on your account during this period.

Hypothetical Example for Comparison Purposes The following table also
provides information about hypothetical account values and hypothetical
expenses based on the Fund’s actual expense ratio and an assumed rate of
return of 5% per year before expenses, which is not the Fund’s actual return.
The hypothetical account values and expenses may not be used to estimate
the actual ending account balance or expenses you paid for the period.  You
may use this information to compare the ongoing costs of investing in the
Fund and other funds.  To do so, compare this 5% hypothetical example with
the 5% hypothetical examples that appear in the shareholder reports of the
other funds.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D
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T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

Please note that the expenses shown in the table are meant to highlight your
ongoing costs only and do not reflect any transactional costs, such as sales
charges (loads) on purchase payments or contingent deferred sales charges on
redemptions, if any.  Therefore, the hypothetical information is useful in com-
paring ongoing costs only, and will not help you determine the relative total
costs of owning different funds.  In addition, if these transactional costs were
included, your costs would have been higher.

Beginning Ending Expenses Paid
Account Value Account Value During Period*

7/1/08 12/31/08 7/1/08 – 12/31/08
Actual

Class C $1,000.00 $685.40 $9.81
Adviser Class 1,000.00 687.10 6.63

Hypothetical (5% annual 
return before expenses)

Class C $1,000.00 $1,013.56 $11.72
Adviser Class 1,000.00 1,017.34 7.93

* Expenses are equal to the Fund’s annualized expense ratio of 2.31% and 1.56% for Class C and Adviser Class, respectively,
multiplied by the average account value over the period, multiplied by 184/365 (to reflect the one-half year period).

Allocation of Portfolio Assets as a percentage of investments
December 31, 2008

Common Stocks Short-Term Investments
-10%

0%
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93.0% 7.0%
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

The Olstein All Cap Value Fund
Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2008 (Unaudited)

COMMON STOCKS – 93.2%
BEVERAGES – 1.4% Shares Value

The Coca-Cola Company 61,700 $2,793,159

Molson Coors Brewing Company – Class B 98,700 4,828,404

7,621,563

BIOTECHNOLOGY – 2.5%

Charles River Laboratories International, Inc. (a) 208,400 5,460,080

Life Technologies Corporation (a) 350,139 8,161,740

13,621,820

BUSINESS SERVICES – 1.1%

Hewitt Associates, Inc. – Class A (a) 211,200 5,993,856

CAPITAL MARKETS – 1.1%

Legg Mason, Inc. 295,200 6,467,832

CHEMICALS – 1.1%

The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company – Class A 216,450 6,432,894

COMMERCIAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES – 4.8%

Cintas 230,700 5,359,161

Korn/Ferry International (a) 639,158 7,299,184

Pitney Bowes Inc. 564,300 14,378,364

27,036,709

COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT – 7.1%

Cisco Systems, Inc. (a) 1,192,400 19,436,120

CommScope, Inc. (a) 852,307 13,244,851

Motorola, Inc. 1,619,100 7,172,613

39,853,584

COMPUTERS & PERIPHERALS – 3.7%

Dell Inc. (a) 1,214,900 12,440,576

Hewlett-Packard Company 114,600 4,158,834

International Business Machines Corporation (IBM) 50,500 4,250,080

20,849,490
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

COMMON STOCKS – 93.2% – continued
DIVERSIFIED FINANCIAL SERVICES – 6.9% Shares Value

AllianceBernstein Holding LP 546,100 $11,353,419

Citigroup Inc. 2,118,900 14,217,819

NYSE Euronext 483,500 13,238,230

38,809,468

ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT & INSTRUMENTS – 4.8%

Agilent Technologies, Inc. (a) 347,023 5,423,970

Rofin-Sinar Technologies, Inc. (a) 339,000 6,976,620

Thermo Fisher Scientific, Inc. (a) 135,300 4,609,671

Tyco Electronics Ltd. (c) 613,825 9,950,103

26,960,364

FOOD & STAPLES RETAILING – 0.8%

Sysco Corporation 194,100 4,452,654

HEALTH CARE EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES – 6.9%

Boston Scientific Corporation (a) 1,771,617 13,712,316

Covidien Limited (c) 314,325 11,391,138

Hospira, Inc. (a) 211,900 5,683,158

Zimmer Holdings, Inc. (a) 192,000 7,760,640

38,547,252

HEALTH CARE PRODUCTS – 2.4%

Johnson & Johnson 222,500 13,312,175

HEALTH CARE PROVIDERS & SERVICES – 2.0%

Quest Diagnostics Incorporated 220,000 11,420,200

HOUSEHOLD DURABLES – 0.8%

Snap-on, Incorporated 116,700 4,595,646

INDUSTRIAL CONGLOMERATES – 7.1%

3M Co. 242,000 13,924,680

Teleflex Incorporated 289,201 14,488,970

Tyco International Ltd. (c) 513,625 11,094,300

39,507,950

INSURANCE – 1.6%

W. R. Berkley Corporation 288,800 8,952,800
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

COMMON STOCKS – 93.2% – continued
IT SERVICES – 0.6% Shares Value

Accenture Ltd. – Class A (c) 104,800 $3,436,392

MACHINERY – 2.1%

Ingersoll-Rand Company Ltd. – Class A (c) 666,000 11,555,100

MEDIA – 1.6%

The Walt Disney Company 391,500 8,883,135

MULTILINE RETAIL – 2.5%

Macy’s, Inc. 1,337,868 13,846,934

OFFICE ELECTRONICS – 2.7%

Xerox Corporation 1,898,700 15,132,639

RESTAURANTS – 8.2%

Burger King Holdings Inc. 403,200 9,628,416

Denny’s Corp. (a) (b) 8,391,000 16,698,090

Jack in the Box Inc. (a) 499,500 11,033,955

McDonald’s Corporation 134,450 8,361,445

45,721,906

SEMICONDUCTOR & SEMICONDUCTOR EQUIPMENT – 3.5%

Intel Corporation 1,333,200 19,544,712

SOFTWARE – 5.7%

Microsoft Corporation 1,189,900 23,131,656

Teradata Corporation (a) 579,400 8,592,502

31,724,158

SPECIALTY RETAIL – 10.2%

Collective Brands, Inc. (a) 569,400 6,673,368

The Gap, Inc. 511,200 6,844,968

The Home Depot, Inc. 504,400 11,611,288

Lowe’s Companies, Inc. 349,700 7,525,544

RadioShack Corporation 1,183,200 14,127,408

The TJX Companies, Inc. 512,600 10,544,182

57,326,758

TOTAL COMMON STOCKS (Cost $705,309,572) 521,607,991
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS – 7.0%
MUTUAL FUNDS – 0.6% Shares Value

First American Prime Obligations Fund – Class I 3,244,872 $3,244,872

U.S. GOVERNMENT AGENCY OBLIGATIONS – 6.4% Principal Amount

Federal Home Loan Bank:

0.40%, 01/02/2009 $7,400,000 7,399,918

0.70%, 01/05/2009 5,825,000 5,824,547

0.36%, 01/15/2009 6,540,000 6,539,084

0.45%, 01/20/2009 700,000 699,834

0.90%, 02/04/2009 6,575,000 6,569,411

0.85%, 02/12/2009 8,970,000 8,961,105

35,993,899

TOTAL SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (Cost $39,238,771) 39,238,771

TOTAL INVESTMENTS – 100.2%
(Cost $744,548,343) 560,846,762

LIABILITIES IN EXCESS OF OTHER ASSETS – (0.2)% (887,005)

TOTAL NET ASSETS – 100.0% $559,959,757

(a) Non-income producing security.
(b) Affiliated company; the Fund owns 5% or more of the outstanding voting securities of the issuer.
(c) U.S. Dollar-denominated foreign security.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

The Olstein All Cap Value Fund
Statement of Assets and Liabilities as of December 31, 2008 (Unaudited)

Assets:

Investments, at value:

Investments in securities of unaffiliated issuers
(cost $706,551,512) $544,148,672

Investments in securities of affiliated issuers
(cost $37,996,831) (See Note 8) 16,698,090

Total investments (cost $744,548,343) 560,846,762

Cash 551

Receivable for securities sold 2,389,872

Receivable for capital shares sold 58,440

Dividends and interest receivable 752,223

Other assets 50,956

Total Assets 564,098,804

Liabilities:

Payable for capital shares redeemed 1,886,072

Distribution expense payable 1,166,844

Payable to Investment Manager (See Note 5) 467,502

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 618,629

Total Liabilities 4,139,047

Net Assets $559,959,757

Net Assets Consist of:

Capital stock $1,021,487,851

Accumulated net realized loss on investments sold (277,826,513)

Net unrealized depreciation on investments (183,701,581)

Total Net Assets $559,959,757
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

CLASS C:

Net Assets $486,909,713

Shares of beneficial interest outstanding
(unlimited number of shares authorized, $0.001 par value) 61,439,194

Net asset value, offering and redemption
(may be subject to contingent deferred sales charge) price per share $7.93

ADVISER CLASS:

Net Assets $73,050,044

Shares of beneficial interest outstanding
(unlimited number of shares authorized, $0.001 par value) 8,355,276

Net asset value, offering and redemption price per share $8.74
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

The Olstein All Cap Value Fund
Statement of Operations

For the Six Months Ended
December 31, 2008

(Unaudited)

Investment Income:

Dividend income:

Dividend income from securities of unaffiliated issuers $7,623,776

Dividend income from securities of affiliated issuers (See Note 8) —

Interest income 525,985

Total investment income 8,149,761

Expenses:

Investment management fee (See Note 5) 3,996,428

Distribution expense – Class C (See Note 6) 3,415,638

Distribution expense – Adviser Class (See Note 6) 145,198

Shareholder servicing and accounting costs 585,140

Administration fee 234,221

Professional fees 156,996

Trustees’ fees and expenses 73,086

Reports to shareholders 67,734

Federal and state registration 49,594

Custody fees 45,520

Other 38,788

Total expenses 8,808,343

Net investment loss (658,582)

Realized and Unrealized Loss on Investments:

Realized loss on:

Investments of unaffiliated issuers (270,960,261)

Investments of affiliated issuers (See Note 8) (1,004,169)

Change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments (17,669,567)

Net realized and unrealized loss on investments (289,633,997)

Net Decrease in Net Assets Resulting from Operations $(290,292,579)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

The Olstein All Cap Value Fund
Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the
Six Months Ended For the

December 31, 2008 Year Ended
(Unaudited) June 30, 2008

Operations:

Net investment loss $(658,582) $(7,837,806)

Net realized gain (loss) on:

Investments of unaffiliated issuers (270,960,261) 60,886,463

Investments of affiliated issuers (See Note 8) (1,004,169) (2,147,949)

Change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments (17,669,567) (499,395,736)

Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations (290,292,579) (448,495,028)

Distributions to Class C Shareholders
from Net Realized Gains — (210,144,851)

Distributions to Adviser Class Shareholders
from Net Realized Gains — (38,555,747)

Net decrease in net assets from
Fund share transactions (Note 7) (164,244,746) (101,397,529)

Total Decrease in Net Assets (454,537,325) (798,593,155)

Net Assets:

Beginning of period 1,014,497,082 1,813,090,237

End of period $559,959,757 $1,014,497,082
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

The Olstein All Cap Value Fund 
Financial Highlights

Class C

For the For the For the For the For the For the For the
Six Months Year Year Year Year Period Year 

Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
Dec. 31, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, Aug. 31,

2008 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 (4) 2003
(Unaudited)

Net Asset Value – 
Beginning of Period $11.57 $19.05 $16.37 $17.54 $17.40 $14.45 $12.34

Investment Operations:

Net investment loss (1) (0.01) (0.10) (0.13) (0.12) (0.18) (0.13) (0.14)

Net realized and unrealized
gain (loss) on investments (3.63) (4.55) 4.18 0.94 0.60 3.08 2.25

Total from 
investment operations (3.64) (4.65) 4.05 0.82 0.42 2.95 2.11

Distributions from 
net realized
gain on investments — (2.83) (1.37) (1.99) (0.28) — —

Net Asset Value – 
End of Period $7.93 $11.57 $19.05 $16.37 $17.54 $17.40 $14.45

Total Return‡ (31.46)%* (27.63)% 25.53% 4.59% 2.43% 20.42%* 17.10%

Ratios (to average net assets)/
Supplemental Data:

Expenses (2) 2.31%** 2.23% 2.19% 2.19% 2.17% 2.16%** 2.23%

Net investment loss (0.27)%** (0.67)% (0.73)% (0.69)% (1.03)% (1.00)%** (1.16)%

Portfolio turnover rate (3) 60.86% 98.00% 79.57% 59.44% 68.46% 52.45% 79.55%

Net assets at end of
period (000 omitted) $486,910 $860,438 $1,508,138 $1,355,960 $1,473,175 $1,556,190 $1,194,726

‡ Total returns do not reflect any deferred sales charge for Class C Shares.
* Not annualized.

** Annualized.
(1) Net investment loss per share represents net investment loss divided by the average shares outstanding throughout the

period.
(2) The expense ratio includes dividends on short positions where applicable.  The ratio of dividends on short positions for the

periods ended June 30, 2005 and August 31, 2003 was 0.00% and 0.02%, respectively. There were no dividends on
short positions for the periods ended December 31, 2008, June 30, 2008, June 30, 2007, June 30, 2006 and June 30,
2004.

(3) Portfolio turnover is calculated on the basis of the Fund as a whole without distinguishing between the classes of shares
issued.

(4) On April 29, 2004, the Fund’s Board approved changing the Fund’s fiscal year end to June 30.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

T H E  O L S T E I N  A L L  C A P  V A L U E  F U N D

The Olstein All Cap Value Fund 
Financial Highlights

Adviser Class

For the For the For the For the For the For the For the
Six Months Year Year Year Year Period Year 

Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended Ended
Dec. 31, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30, Aug. 31,

2008 2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 (4) 2003
(Unaudited)

Net Asset Value – 
Beginning of Period $12.72 $20.49 $17.39 $18.38 $18.09 $14.93 $12.66

Investment Operations:

Net investment 
income (loss) (1) 0.03 0.01 0.00 0.01 (0.05) (0.03) (0.05)

Net realized and unrealized 
gain (loss) on investments (4.01) (4.95) 4.47 0.99 0.62 3.19 2.32

Total from 
investment operations (3.98) (4.94) 4.47 1.00 0.57 3.16 2.27

Distributions from 
net realized 
gain on investments — (2.83) (1.37) (1.99) (0.28) — —

Net Asset Value – 
End of Period $8.74 $12.72 $20.49 $17.39 $18.38 $18.09 $14.93

Total Return (31.29)%* (27.06)% 26.48% 5.40% 3.18% 21.17%* 17.93%

Ratios (to average net assets)/
Supplemental Data:

Expenses (2) 1.56%** 1.48% 1.44% 1.44% 1.42% 1.41%** 1.48%

Net investment income (loss) 0.48%** 0.08% 0.02% 0.06% (0.28)% (0.25)%** (0.41)%

Portfolio turnover rate (3) 60.86% 98.00% 79.57% 59.44% 68.46% 52.45% 79.55%

Net assets at end of 
period (000 omitted) $73,050 $154,059 $304,952 $280,596 $413,800 $451,620 $350,583

* Not annualized.
** Annualized.

(1) Net investment income (loss) per share represents net investment income (loss) divided by the average shares outstand-
ing throughout the period.

(2) The expense ratio includes dividends on short positions where applicable. The ratio of dividends on short positions for the
periods ended June 30, 2005 and August 31, 2003 was 0.00% and 0.02%, respectively. There were no dividends on
short positions for the periods ended December 31, 2008, June 30, 2008, June 30, 2007, June 30, 2006 and June 30,
2004.

(3) Portfolio turnover is calculated on the basis of the Fund as a whole without distinguishing between the classes of shares
issued.

(4) On April 29, 2004, the Fund’s Board approved changing the Fund’s fiscal year end to June 30.
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T H E O L S T E I N S T R AT E G I C
O P P O R T U N I T I E S F U N D

Letter to Shareholders

D E A R F E L L O W S H A R E H O L D E R S :

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012, Class A shares (load-waived) of the
Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund returned -1.61%, compared to a return
of -2.29% for the Russell 2500® Total Return Index and a return of 5.45% for
the S&P 500® Total Return Index over the same time period. For the first six
months of calendar year 2012, Class A shares (load-waived) of the Olstein
Strategic Opportunities Fund increased 9.64%, compared to a returns of
8.31% and 9.49% for the Russell 2500® Total Return Index and S&P 500®

Total Return Index, respectively, over the same time period.

M A R K E T O U T L O O K

The European debt crisis combined with the severe austerity measures auto-
matically activated by high sovereign debt loads continue to weigh heavily on
the overall global economy, with a dozen European economies including Great
Britain, Italy, the Netherlands, and Spain sliding back into recession during
the first half of 2012. Economic contraction across the European continent, a
sharp slowdown in China’s growth and renewed concerns about the strength
of the U.S. economy not only caused an abrupt end to the six-month equity
market rally that began in October 2011, but have also triggered another spell
of investor hand-wringing and increased equity market volatility.

T H E O L S T E I N S T R A T E G I C O P P O R T U N I T I E S F U N D

The performance data quoted represents past performance and does not guarantee
future results. The Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund Class A return as of June
30, 2012 for the one-year period, five-year period, and since inception (November 1,
2006) period, assuming deduction of the maximum Class A sales charge of 5.50%,
was -7.05%, -1.58% and 1.74%, respectively. Per the Fund’s October 31, 2011
prospectus, the Fund’s gross expense ratio was 2.06%, and the net expense ratio was
1.60% after the contractual expense waiver and/or reimbursement. The contractual
expense waiver shall remain in effect until at least October 28, 2012. Expense ratios
for other share classes will vary. Performance for other share classes will vary due to
differences in sales charge structure and class expenses. The investment return and
principal value of an investment will fluctuate so that an investor’s shares, when
redeemed, may be worth more or less than their original cost. Current performance
may be lower or higher than performance quoted. To obtain performance data cur-
rent to the most recent month end, please visit our website at www.olsteinfunds.com.
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T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R AT E G I C
O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D

Letter to Shareholders

D E A R  F E L L O W  S H A R E H O L D E R S :

F I N D I N G  I N V E S T M E N T  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  
D U R I N G  A N  E C O N O M I C  S L O W D O W N

The widening credit crisis, marked by ongoing liquidity concerns and contin-
ued asset write-downs at leading financial institutions, worsened during the
second half of 2008, resulting in a full-blown crisis of confidence in the health
of the U.S. banking system and raising fears of a prolonged global economic
downturn. Market volatility increased sharply, as a series of financial crises
unfolded in September 2008, none with more far-reaching consequences than
the bankruptcy of Lehman Brothers on September 15, 2008.  In the wake of
Lehman’s collapse, major equity indices fell precipitously with the S&P 500®

Index dropping 40% in value from the close of the trading session immedi-
ately prior to the Lehman announcement to its 2008 low on November 20th.

Against this backdrop, Class A shares (load-waived) of the Olstein Strategic
Opportunities Fund had a total return of -27.40% for the six month period
ended December 31, 2008, compared to a return of -31.21% for the Russell
2500® Index and a return of -28.50% for the S&P 500® Index over the same
time period.  The Fund’s outperformance relative to both the Russell 2500®

and the S&P 500® indices for the last six months of 2008 was due to the
Fund’s overweight exposure to the Consumer Discretionary and Materials sec-

T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R A T E G I C  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D

The performance data quoted represents past performance and does not guarantee
future results.  The Olstein Strategic Opportunities Class A return as of 12/31/2008
for the one-year period and since inception date of 11/01/06 assuming deduction of
the Olstein Strategic Opportunities Class A maximum sales charge of 5.50% was 
-41.53% and -22.62% respectively.  Per the 10/31/08 prospectus, the gross expense
ratio for the Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund Class A Share was 2.19% and the
net expense ratio was 1.62% after contractual expense waiver and/or reimbursement.
Expense ratios for other share classes will vary.  The investment return and principal
value of an investment will fluctuate so that an investor’s shares, when redeemed, may
be worth more or less than their original cost.  Current performance may be lower or
higher than performance quoted.  To obtain performance data current to the most
recent month end, please go to our website at www.olsteinfunds.com.
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Letter to Shareholders

D E A R  F E L L O W  S H A R E H O L D E R S :

F I N D I N G  I N V E S T M E N T  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  
D U R I N G  A N  E C O N O M I C  S L O W D O W N

The widening credit crisis, marked by ongoing liquidity concerns and contin-
ued asset write-downs at leading financial institutions, worsened during the
second half of 2008, resulting in a full-blown crisis of confidence in the health
of the U.S. banking system and raising fears of a prolonged global economic
downturn. Market volatility increased sharply, as a series of financial crises
unfolded in September 2008, none with more far-reaching consequences than
the bankruptcy of Lehman Brothers on September 15, 2008.  In the wake of
Lehman’s collapse, major equity indices fell precipitously with the S&P 500®

Index dropping 40% in value from the close of the trading session immedi-
ately prior to the Lehman announcement to its 2008 low on November 20th.

Against this backdrop, Class A shares (load-waived) of the Olstein Strategic
Opportunities Fund had a total return of -27.40% for the six month period
ended December 31, 2008, compared to a return of -31.21% for the Russell
2500® Index and a return of -28.50% for the S&P 500® Index over the same
time period.  The Fund’s outperformance relative to both the Russell 2500®

and the S&P 500® indices for the last six months of 2008 was due to the
Fund’s overweight exposure to the Consumer Discretionary and Materials sec-
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The performance data quoted represents past performance and does not guarantee
future results.  The Olstein Strategic Opportunities Class A return as of 12/31/2008
for the one-year period and since inception date of 11/01/06 assuming deduction of
the Olstein Strategic Opportunities Class A maximum sales charge of 5.50% was 
-41.53% and -22.62% respectively.  Per the 10/31/08 prospectus, the gross expense
ratio for the Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund Class A Share was 2.19% and the
net expense ratio was 1.62% after contractual expense waiver and/or reimbursement.
Expense ratios for other share classes will vary.  The investment return and principal
value of an investment will fluctuate so that an investor’s shares, when redeemed, may
be worth more or less than their original cost.  Current performance may be lower or
higher than performance quoted.  To obtain performance data current to the most
recent month end, please go to our website at www.olsteinfunds.com.

Performance data quoted represents past performance. Past performance does 
not guarantee future results. All performance stated in this document assumes 
the reinvestment of dividends and capital gains. We caution shareholders that 
we can never predict or assure future returns on investments. The 
investment return and principal value of an investment with our Funds 
will fluctuate over time so that your shares, when redeemed, may be 
with more or less than their original cost. Current performance may be 
lower or higher than the performance data quoted. Click the following links 
for the annual expense ratios and standardized performance current to the 
most recent quarter and month end periods for The Olstein Strategic 
Opportunities Fund.

http://www.olsteinfunds.com/funds/olstein-strategic-opportunities-fund/performance
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tors and underweight exposure to one of the worst performing sectors in the
index, the Energy sector.  Stock selection within the Industrials, Health Care
and Materials sectors also contributed to the Fund’s outperformance during
the last half of the year.

M A R K E T  O U T L O O K

While a drastic increase in volatility prevented equity markets from settling
down long enough to establish a consistent, long-term perspective, we believe
it is important to maintain a mindset that looks beyond daily market moves
(no matter how difficult) with an understanding that the market will eventu-
ally recognize companies with strong fundamentals, stable cash flow and
above-average operating returns. During 2009 we expect the market to reward
companies that have practiced sound capital management and have the
financial strength to ride out a prolonged economic downturn, especially in
industries hardest hit by fears of recession (such as Retailing, Restaurants, and
Consumer Durables).

While this expectation for companies within the Consumer Discretionary
sector may seem counterintuitive as we face a blitz of “bad news” about the
economy, we must point out that many of the industries within this sector are
rapidly experiencing a contraction in capacity that we expect to continue
throughout 2009.  High-profile corporate bankruptcies announced in 2008
include well-known names in several of these industries, including mid-tier
department store chain, Mervyn’s; specialty retailers Circuit City, Sharper
Image,  and Linens ’n Things, and casual restaurant chain, Bennigan’s (along
with its affiliated brand, Steak & Ale Restaurants).  In each of these cases the
companies were overwhelmed by debt servicing requirements as their rev-
enues fell sharply due to a pullback in consumer spending.

What the doomsayers fail to point out as they gloomily announce these busi-
ness failures is the simple fact that the well-capitalized, well-run competitors
of these failed companies will ultimately benefit from increased market share
in their respective industries.  For example, once the inventory of Circuit City
works through the market (via liquidators), we believe RadioShack, with one
less competitor, will be in a stronger market position when consumers even-
tually loosen their purse strings.

Since we expect that 2009 will bring a rise in bankruptcies and corporate reor-
ganizations across most, if not all,  market sectors we cannot stress enough the
importance of balance sheet strength and fiscal discipline for each of our port-
folio companies.  As signs of economic recovery begin to sprout and as con-
sumer spending ticks upward, as we expect in the second half of 2009, we
believe it will be those well-capitalized, well-run companies that reap the ben-
efits of a burgeoning recovery.

T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R A T E G I C  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D
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Our outlook for the market is greatly influenced by the belief that the best
defense for such a difficult economic and investment environment is to buy
companies that have the ability to generate free cash flow, have little or no
debt or are aggressively paying down debt, and to buy such companies at a sig-
nificant discount to their intrinsic value.  Throughout the last half of the year
the volatile market environment has afforded ample opportunity to buy such
companies at what we believe are extremely attractive prices.

P O R T F O L I O  A N D  P E R F O R M A N C E  R E V I E W

At December 31, 2008, the Fund’s portfolio consisted of 37 holdings with an
average weighted market capitalization of $1.35 billion.  We have taken
advantage of volatility in the market over the past six months to initiate or
increase holdings in companies that we believe have future earnings power
that is not being properly valued by the market.  During the second half of
2008 the Fund initiated positions in twelve companies and strategically added
to positions in eight companies.  Over the same time period the Fund elimi-
nated its holdings in twelve companies and decreased its holdings in another
seven companies.  At the same time we have eliminated or reduced positions
in companies in which changing conditions or new information resulted in
additional risk and/or reduced appreciation potential, we have also reduced
positions in companies that reached our valuation levels and redeployed pro-
ceeds from such sales into opportunities that, in our opinion, offer a more
favorable risk/reward profile.

Notable gainers in the Fund’s portfolio during the six-month period ended
December 31, 2008, include Health Care companies:  Boston Scientific Corp.
and Charles River Laboratories; Consumer Discretionary companies
Collective Brands, the holding company for Payless Shoe Source, Stride Rite
and Collecting Licensing International, Carter’s, the baby/young children
apparel company; RadioShack Corp., a consumer electronics retailer, and
FootLocker Inc., an athletic shoe and clothing retailer. Also contributing to
the Fund’s performance during the period were Nash-Finch Company, a
wholesale food distributor and Griffon Corp., a building products supplier.

The biggest detractors from performance during the reporting period includ-
ed, Teradyne Inc., manufacturer of automatic test equipment for the elec-
tronics and telecommunications industries, Office Depot, an office products
retailer, Bare Escentuals, a cosmetics and skin care company, and investment
management firm, Janus Capital Group.  At the end of the reporting period
the Fund continued to maintain positions in all four of these companies and,
as their stock prices fell during the last six months of the year, the Fund added
to all of these positions.

T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R A T E G I C  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D
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R E V I E W  O F  A C T I V I S T  H O L D I N G S

As of December 31, 2008, the Fund was invested in six activist holdings,
which represented approximately 24% of the Fund’s equity investments and
three of its top ten holdings.  Each of these situations fits our definition of an
activist investment where an outside investor, in most cases a hedge fund or
private equity investor, seeks to influence company management to adopt
strategic alternatives that we expect to unlock greater shareholder value. In
addition to The Cheesecake Factory and Denny’s Corporation, where Olstein
leads activist efforts to date, the Fund’s activist holdings include two other
restaurant companies: Luby’s Inc., and CKE Restaurants; and two specialty
retailers: Office Depot and Collective Brands.  During the reporting period
the Fund liquidated several activist positions, including: Griffon Corp., a sup-
plier of building products, as the company’s stock reached our valuation level;
Atmel, Inc., an advanced semi-conductor manufacturer, after management
rejected what we believed was a reasonable takeover bid; Sealy Corp, the
world’s largest bedding manufacturer and Dixie Group, a manufacturer of floor
coverings, to pursue opportunities that we believe offered a more favorable
risk/reward profile.

We continue to monitor the progress of the activist investors involved in
these investment situations as they work to increase shareholder value
through a specific plan for improving each company’s results.  While each
investment is at a different strategic stage, we believe the actions that have
been proposed or implemented should increase shareholder value through
improved future operating results.

F I N D I N G  I N V E S T M E N T  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  
D U R I N G  A N  E C O N O M I C  S L O W D O W N

In our last letter we discussed the challenges and advantages of pursuing an
activist agenda in the face of market volatility and a prolonged economic
slowdown. We began that discussion with the simple statement – “we believe
that a difficult economic environment provides the best time to find good
investment ideas.” In this letter we discuss how difficult economic times help
us in our search for viable investment ideas and profile the types of compa-
nies, regardless of their industry or sector, which pique our interest during a
tough environment.

One of the primary tenets of our investment philosophy, often expressed in
shareholder letters and other promotional materials for the Olstein Funds, is
that “excess cash flow is the lifeblood of a business.”  We believe that compa-
nies that generate free cash flow and use that cash in an intelligent manner
are the companies that build meaningful shareholder value over time.  In our 

T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R A T E G I C  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D
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opinion, companies that generate free cash flow make for suitable long-term
investments because they have the potential to enhance shareholder value by
increasing dividend payments, repurchasing company shares, reducing out-
standing debt, engaging in strategic acquisitions, or withstanding an econom-
ic downturn without adopting harmful short-term strategies.

As investors, our challenge is to develop a thorough understanding of how a
company’s operations can generate sustainable free cash flow during growing,
stagnant, or deteriorating economic conditions. We seek to identify compa-
nies with a unique business model; a competitive edge and strong under-
standing of the markets in which they compete since we believe such compa-
nies are usually in a much better position to weather the dynamics of a down-
turn than their weaker competitors.  We also believe it is important to iden-
tify those companies that not only have focused their priorities in the face of
a weaker economic environment but have also identified options that can
create a substantial strategic advantage for the inevitable economic upturn.

The Importance of Balance Sheet Strength: The strength of a company’s
balance sheet determines the range of strategic options it can pursue to min-
imize performance deterioration or make gains during a recession.  Companies
with ample cash reserves and low debt levels may devote resources to increas-
ing market share while weaker competitors are forced to play defense through
aggressive cost cutting or broad restructuring efforts.  Our analysis focuses on
the company’s use of cash to take advantage of opportunities:  is the compa-
ny increasing cash reserves; can the company finance certain initiatives inter-
nally (using cash flow from operations) to increase its capacity? We focus on
the nature of the company’s debt:  is leverage a significant element of the
company’s business model; has the company reduced leverage in line with or
ahead of its peers; does the company use debt to finance share buybacks? In
addition to debt and cash levels we focus on other factors as well:  can the
company reduce the capital intensity of its business model; how well has the
company managed inventories; has it reduced payables; is the company
achieving the best possible terms from suppliers?

The Importance of Operating Flexibility: We believe it is important for a
company to focus on reducing costs without undertaking harmful short-term
strategies or damaging the long-term health of the business.  When facing an
economic downturn it is extremely important that the company undertake a
tough self-assessment and thorough scan of its operating environment before
deciding on the relative merits of across-the-board cost cutting, versus target-
ed increases and decreases in expenditures.  For each investment opportunity,
we explore a wide range of choices that are likely to affect the predictability
of future free cash flow:  will automatic cuts to research & development put 

T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R A T E G I C  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D
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T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R A T E G I C  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D

the company at a long-term disadvantage to competitors; will deep advertis-
ing cuts cause long-lasting harm through lost market share; will extensive lay-
offs damage the company’s ability to hire and retain the best talent in the
future; has the company made sustainable gains in productivity; how are the
company’s competitors approaching the same operating decisions?

The Importance of Diversification: Companies with diverse product offer-
ings that appeal to multiple market segments across a broad geographic foot-
print are usually in a strong position to weather tough economic times.
Through this part of our analysis we judge a company’s competitive effective-
ness across many factors, including:  how does the company rank in each of
its customer segments; how does the company rank in each of its geographic
market segments; does the company understand its customers better than its
competition; does the company have a robust product develop-
ment/innovation function; have previous product innovations resulted in
increased volume (without aggressive discounting); are the company’s adver-
tising and promotional programs effective; does the company offer products
tailored to its profitable customers; and in addition to sales what metrics does
the company use to judge it success?

As with our activist situations, one of the most important variables we con-
sider for each investment or investment opportunity during tough economic
times, is “how long will it take for this company to improve its results?”
Although we know from experience that successful turnarounds don’t happen
overnight, we do expect specific improvements in operations to occur within
a defined period of time notwithstanding the economic environment.
Although a turnaround process may not be in full swing, if a company has
adopted what we believe is the right strategy to increase shareholder value
over the next three to five years, we are willing to wait for operating results to
improve if we are being sufficiently rewarded for the risk we have taken, and
if our ongoing analysis of the company’s financial statements tell us the com-
pany is headed in the right direction.

As we wait for equity markets to regain a balanced perspective and once again
focus on company fundamentals, we remind you that, as always, patience pro-
vides generous opportunities for the diligent investor.  We intend to stay the
course during the current market turmoil.  We are invested in companies that,
in our opinion, have the financial strength to ride out the storm while offer-
ing favorable long-term business prospects.  We continue to invest our money 
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alongside yours, value your trust and work hard to accomplish the Fund’s
objective of long-term capital appreciation.  We extend our best wishes for a
happy, healthy and successful 2009!

Sincerely,

Eric R. Heyman Robert A. Olstein
Co-Portfolio Manager Chairman, Chief Investment Officer

and Co-Portfolio Manager

An investment in a portfolio containing small- and mid-cap companies is subject to
additional risks, as the share prices of small- and mid-cap companies are often more
volatile than those of larger companies due to several factors, including limited trad-
ing volumes, products, financial resources, management inexperience and less pub-
licly available information. Investing in a non-diversified, narrowly focused fund
may entail greater risks than is normally associated with more widely diversified
funds.  The investment return and principal value of an investment will fluctuate so
that an investor’s shares, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than their orig-
inal cost.

The S&P 500® Index is an unmanaged index created by Standard & Poor’s
Corporation that includes a representative sample of 500 leading companies in lead-
ing industries of the U.S. economy and is considered to represent the U.S. stock-
market performance in general.  The S&P 500® Index is not an investment product
available for purchase.  Index returns do not reflect any management fees, transac-
tion costs or expenses.

The Russell 2500® Index is an unmanaged index created by The Russell Investment
Group.  The Russell 2500® is constructed to provide a comprehensive and unbiased
barometer for the small to mid-cap segment and is completely reconstituted annual-
ly to ensure larger stocks do not distort the performance and characteristics of the
true small to mid-cap opportunity set. The Russell 2500® includes the smallest 2500
securities in the Russell 3000®.  The Russell 2500® Index is not an investment prod-
uct available for purchase. Index returns do not reflect any management fees, trans-
action costs or expenses.

For a complete listing of the Olstein All Cap Value Fund’s portfolio holdings, please
see the Schedule of Investments starting on page 38. The references to securities are
not buy or sell recommendations. The references are intended to be descriptive
examples of the Fund’s investment philosophy. Do not make investments based on
the preceding securities referenced.

T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R A T E G I C  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D
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The above commentary represents the opinion of the Manager, and is not intended
to be a forecast of future events, a guarantee of future results, or investment advice.
This information should be preceded or accompanied by a current prospectus, which
contains more complete information, including investment objectives, risks, and
charges and expenses of the Fund and should be read carefully before investing.  A
current prospectus may be obtained by calling (800) 799-2113 or by visiting the
Fund’s Website at www.olsteinfunds.com.

Distributed by Olstein Capital Management, L.P.  Member FINRA

Not FDIC insured / Not bank-guaranteed / May lose value.
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The Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund
Expense Example as of December 31 2008 (Unaudited)

As a shareholder of the Fund, you incur two types of costs: (1) transaction
costs, including sales charges (loads) on purchase payments or contingent
deferred sales charges on redemptions; if any; and (2) ongoing costs, includ-
ing management fees; distribution fees (12b-1); and other Fund expenses.
This Example is intended to help you understand your ongoing costs (in dol-
lars) of investing in the Fund and to compare these costs with the ongoing
costs of investing in other mutual funds.  The Example is based on an invest-
ment of $1,000 invested at the beginning of the period and held for the entire
period, July 1, 2008 – December 31, 2008.

Actual Expenses The following table provides information about actual
account values and actual expenses.  You will be assessed fees for outgoing
wire transfers, returned checks and stop payment orders at prevailing rates
charged by U.S. Bancorp Fund Services, LLC, the Fund’s transfer agent.  If
you request that a redemption be made by a wire transfer, currently a $15 fee
is charged by the Fund’s transfer agent.  IRA accounts will be charged a $15
annual maintenance fee and a $25 distribution fee.  The following example
includes, but is not limited to, management fees, distribution fees, fund
accounting, custody and transfer agent fees.  However, the following example
does not include portfolio trading commissions and related expenses.  You
may use the information in this table, together with the amount you invest-
ed, to estimate the expenses that you paid over the period.  Simply divide your
account value by $1,000 (for example, an $8,600 account value divided by
$1,000 = 8.6), then multiply the result by the number in the table under the
heading entitled “Expenses Paid During Period’’ to estimate the expenses you
paid on your account during this period.

Hypothetical Example for Comparison Purposes The following table also
provides information about hypothetical account values and hypothetical
expenses based on the Fund’s actual expense ratio and an assumed rate of
return of 5% per year before expenses, which is not the Fund’s actual return.
The hypothetical account values and expenses may not be used to estimate
the actual ending account balance or expenses you paid for the period.  You
may use this information to compare the ongoing costs of investing in the
Fund and other funds.  To do so, compare this 5% hypothetical example with
the 5% hypothetical examples that appear in the shareholder reports of the
other funds.

T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R A T E G I C  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D
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Please note that the expenses shown in the table are meant to highlight your
ongoing costs only and do not reflect any transactional costs, such as sales
charges (loads) on purchase payments or contingent deferred sales charges on
redemptions, if any.  Therefore, the hypothetical information is useful in com-
paring ongoing costs only, and will not help you determine the relative total
costs of owning different funds.  In addition, if these transactional costs were
included, your costs would have been higher.

Beginning Ending Expenses Paid
Account Value Account Value During Period*

7/1/08 12/31/08 7/1/08 – 12/31/08
Actual

Class A $1,000.00 $726.00 $ 6.96
Class C 1,000.00 723.60 10.21

Hypothetical (5% annual 
return before expenses)

Class A $1,000.00 $1,017.14 $ 8.13
Class C 1,000.00 1,013.36 11.93

* Expenses are equal to the Fund’s annualized expense ratio of 1.60% and 2.35% for Class A and Class C, respectively, multi-
plied by the average account value over the period, multiplied by 184/365.

Allocation of Portfolio Assets as a percentage of investments
December 31, 2008
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund
Schedule of Investments as of December 31, 2008 (Unaudited)

COMMON STOCKS – 93.7%
BIOTECHNOLOGY – 3.7% Shares Value

Charles River Laboratories International, Inc. (a) 7,000 $183,400

Life Technologies Corporation (a) 8,000 186,480

369,880

BUSINESS SERVICES – 4.1%

Barrett Business Services, Inc. 20,000 218,000

Hewitt Associates, Inc. – Class A (a) 7,000 198,660

416,660

CAPITAL MARKETS – 7.0%

Janus Capital Group Inc. 28,000 224,840

Legg Mason, Inc. 22,000 482,020

706,860

CHEMICALS – 1.1%

The Scotts Miracle-Gro Company – Class A 3,800 112,936

COMMERCIAL SERVICES & SUPPLIES – 1.4%

Cintas 6,000 139,380

COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT – 3.1%

CommScope, Inc. (a) 20,000 310,800

CONSTRUCTION & ENGINEERING – 1.8%

Quanta Services, Inc. (a) 9,000 178,200

ELECTRONIC EQUIPMENT & INSTRUMENTS – 1.4%

Rofin-Sinar Technologies, Inc. (a) 7,000 144,060

HEALTH CARE EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES – 3.6%

Boston Scientific Corporation (a) 22,000 170,280

Medical Action Industries, Inc. (a) 19,000 190,000

360,280

HOUSEHOLD DURABLES – 1.6%

Blount International, Inc. (a) 17,000 161,160

T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R A T E G I C  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

COMMON STOCKS – 93.7% – continued
INDUSTRIAL CONGLOMERATES – 7.0% Shares Value

Teleflex Incorporated 14,000 $701,400

INSURANCE – 0.9%

W. R. Berkley Corporation 3,000 93,000

MACHINERY – 9.9%

Columbus McKinnon Corporation (a) 18,000 245,700

Flanders Corporation (a) 79,000 370,510

The Middleby Corporation (a) 5,000 136,350

Thermadyne Holdings Corporation (a) 35,000 240,450

993,010

MULTILINE RETAIL – 1.9%

Macy’s, Inc. 18,000 186,300

PERSONAL PRODUCTS – 3.3%

Bare Escentuals, Inc. (a) 63,000 329,490

RESTAURANTS – 23.3%

Burger King Holdings Inc. 3,000 71,640

The Cheesecake Factory Incorporated (a) 31,000 313,100

CKE Restaurants, Inc. 25,000 217,000

Cracker Barrel Old Country Store Inc. 11,000 226,490

Denny’s Corp. (a) 500,000 995,000

Jack in the Box Inc. (a) 13,700 302,633

Luby’s, Inc. (a) 52,000 217,880

2,343,743

SEMICONDUCTOR & SEMICONDUCTOR EQUIPMENT – 5.3%

Entegris Inc. (a) 125,000 273,750

Teradyne, Inc. (a) 62,000 261,640

535,390

SPECIALTY RETAIL – 13.3%

Collective Brands, Inc. (a) 20,000 234,400

The Dress Barn, Inc. (a) 17,000 182,580

DSW, Inc. – Class A (a) 19,000 236,740

Office Depot, Inc. (a) 83,000 247,340

T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R A T E G I C  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D
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COMMON STOCKS – 93.7% – continued
SPECIALTY RETAIL – 13.3% – continued Shares Value

RadioShack Corporation 24,000 $286,560

The Wet Seal Inc. – Class A (a) 50,000 148,500

1,336,120

TOTAL COMMON STOCKS (Cost $14,729,920) 9,418,669

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS – 11.6%
MUTUAL FUNDS – 11.6%

First American Prime Obligations Fund – Class I 1,162,581 1,162,581

TOTAL SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS (Cost $1,162,581) 1,162,581

TOTAL INVESTMENTS – 105.3%
(Cost $15,892,501) 10,581,250

LIABILITIES IN EXCESS OF OTHER ASSETS – (5.3)% (537,248)

TOTAL NET ASSETS – 100.0% $10,044,002

(a) Non-income producing security.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund
Statement of Assets and Liabilities as of December 31, 2008 (Unaudited)

Assets:

Investments, at value (cost $15,892,501) $10,581,250

Receivable for capital shares sold 10,361

Dividends and interest receivable 8,376

Receivable from Investment Manager 2,909

Other assets 19,359

Total Assets 10,622,255

Liabilities:

Payable for securities purchased 491,793

Payable for capital shares redeemed 30,028

Distribution expense payable 13,034

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 43,398

Total Liabilities 578,253

Net Assets $10,044,002

Net Assets Consist of:

Capital stock $18,433,207

Accumulated net realized loss on investments sold (3,077,954)

Net unrealized depreciation on investments (5,311,251)

Total Net Assets $10,044,002
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CLASS A:

Net Assets $4,446,352

Shares of beneficial interest outstanding
(unlimited number of shares authorized, $0.001 par value) 735,715

Net asset value and redemption price per share $6.04

Maximum offering price per share $6.39

CLASS C:

Net Assets $5,597,650

Shares of beneficial interest outstanding
(unlimited number of shares authorized, $0.001 par value) 937,799

Net asset value, offering and redemption
(may be subject to contingent deferred sales charge) price per share $5.97
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The Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund
Statement of Operations

For the Six Months Ended
December 31, 2008

(Unaudited)

Investment Income:

Dividend income $ 50,130

Interest income 4,801

Total investment income 54,931

Expenses:

Investment management fee (See Note 5) 59,859

Distribution expense – Class A (See Note 6) 6,343

Distribution expense – Class C (See Note 6) 34,484

Shareholder servicing and accounting costs 29,182

Federal and state registration 15,056

Professional fees 14,378

Administration fee 10,070

Custody fees 4,100

Trustees’ fees and expenses 1,062

Reports to shareholders 920

Other 422

Total expenses 175,876

Expense reimbursement by Adviser (See Note 5) (54,239)

Net Expenses 121,637

Net investment loss (66,706)

Realized and Unrealized Loss on Investments:

Realized loss on investments (1,381,018)

Change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments (2,275,671)

Net realized and unrealized loss on investments (3,656,689)

Net Decrease in Net Assets Resulting from Operations $(3,723,395)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund
Statements of Changes in Net Assets

For the
Six Months Ended For the

December 31, 2008 Year Ended
(Unaudited) June 30, 2008

Operations:

Net investment loss $ (66,706) $ (190,856)

Net realized loss on investments (1,381,018) (1,605,496)

Change in unrealized appreciation/depreciation on investments (2,275,671) (4,329,143)

Net decrease in net assets resulting from operations (3,723,395) (6,125,495)

Distributions to Class A Shareholders:

from Ordinary Income — (11,459)

from Net Realized Gains — (39,712)

— (51,171)

Distributions to Class C Shareholders:

from Ordinary Income — (5,333)

from Net Realized Gains — (50,631)

— (55,964)

Net increase (decrease) in net assets from
Fund share transactions (Note 7) (473,339) 3,805,779

Total Decrease in Net Assets (4,196,734) (2,426,851)

Net Assets:

Beginning of period 14,240,736 16,667,587

End of period $10,044,002 $14,240,736

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund
Financial Highlights

Class A

For the For the Nov. 1, 
Six Months Year 2006 (1)

Ended Ended through
Dec.31, June 30, June 30, 

2008 2008 2007
(Unaudited)

Net Asset Value – Beginning of Period $8.32 $11.94 $10.00

Investment Operations:

Net investment income (loss) (2) (0.03) (0.07) 0.03

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments (2.25) (3.49) 1.91

Total from investment operations (2.28) (3.56) 1.94

Distributions from:

Net investment income — (0.01) —

Net realized gain on investments — (0.05) —

Total distributions — (0.06) —

Net Asset Value – End of Period $6.04 $ 8.32 $11.94

Total Return‡ (27.40)%* (29.93)% 19.40%*

Ratios (to average net assets)/
Supplemental Data:

Ratio of expenses:

Before expense waiver and/or reimbursement 2.51%** 2.17% 3.21%**

After expense waiver and/or reimbursement 1.60%** 1.60% 1.60%**

Ratio of net investment income (loss):

Before expense waiver and/or reimbursement (1.59)%** (1.27)% (1.15)%**

After expense waiver and/or reimbursement (0.68)%** (0.70)% 0.46%**

Portfolio turnover rate (3) 54.38% 100.57% 19.09%

Net assets at end of period (000 omitted) $4,446 $5,943 $8,647

‡ Total return does not reflect any sales charge for Class A shares.
* Not annualized.

** Annualized.
(1) Commencement of operations.
(2) Net investment income (loss) per share represents net investment income (loss) divided by the average shares outstand-

ing throughout the period.
(3) Portfolio turnover is calculated on the basis of the Fund as a whole without distinguishing between the classes of shares

issued.

T H E  O L S T E I N  S T R A T E G I C  O P P O R T U N I T I E S  F U N D



47

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

The Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund
Financial Highlights

Class C

For the For the Nov. 1, 
Six Months Year 2006 (1)

Ended Ended through
Dec. 31, June 30, June 30, 

2008 2008 2007
(Unaudited)

Net Asset Value – Beginning of Period $8.25 $11.92 $10.00

Investment Operations:

Net investment loss (2) (0.05) (0.14) (0.02)

Net realized and unrealized gain (loss) on investments (2.23) (3.48) 1.94

Total from investment operations (2.28) (3.62) 1.92

Distributions from:

Net investment income — (0.00)(3) —

Net realized gain on investments — (0.05) —

Total distributions — (0.05) —

Net Asset Value – End of Period $5.97 $ 8.25 $11.92

Total Return‡ (27.64)%* (30.45)% 19.20%*

Ratios (to average net assets)/
Supplemental Data:

Ratio of expenses:

Before expense waiver and/or reimbursement 3.26%** 2.92% 3.96%**

After expense waiver and/or reimbursement 2.35%** 2.35% 2.35%**

Ratio of net investment loss:

Before expense waiver and/or reimbursement (2.34)%** (2.02)% (1.90)%**

After expense waiver and/or reimbursement (1.43)%** (1.45)% (0.29)%**

Portfolio turnover rate (4) 54.38% 100.57% 19.09%

Net assets at end of period (000 omitted) $5,598 $8,298 $8,021

‡ Total return does not reflect any deferred sales charge for Class C Shares.
* Not annualized.

** Annualized.
(1) Commencement of operations.
(2) Net investment loss per share represents net investment loss divided by the average shares outstanding throughout the

period.
(3) Amount is less than 0.005 per share.
(4) Portfolio turnover is calculated on the basis of the Fund as a whole without distinguishing between the classes of shares

issued.
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The Olstein Funds
Notes to Financial Statements (Unaudited)

1 Description of the Funds The Olstein Funds (the “Trust”), a Delaware
statutory trust organized on March 31, 1995, is registered under the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the “1940 Act”), as an
open-end investment management company.  The Trust consists of two
series of shares, the Olstein All Cap Value Fund (“All Cap Value Fund”)
and the Olstein Strategic Opportunities Fund (“Strategic Fund”) (collec-
tively the “Funds”).  The All Cap Value Fund is a diversified investment
management company and the Strategic Fund is a non-diversified invest-
ment management company.  The primary investment objective of the
Funds is long-term capital appreciation with a secondary objective of
income.  The All Cap Value Fund commenced investment operations on
September 21, 1995 and the Strategic Fund commenced operations on
November 1, 2006.

The All Cap Value Fund issued a second class of shares, Adviser Class
shares, and renamed the initial class as Class C shares on September 1,
1999. The Adviser Class shares were initially sold on September 21, 1999
and are subject to expenses pursuant to the Shareholder Servicing and
Distribution Plan described in Note 6. The Class C shares are subject to a
contingent deferred sales charge (“CDSC”) for redemptions in accordance
with the All Cap Value Fund’s prospectus, and expenses pursuant to the
Shareholder Servicing and Distribution Plan described in Note 6. The
maximum CDSC is 1.00% based on the lesser of the original purchase
price or the value of such shares at the time of redemption for Class C
shares within one year of purchase.

The Strategic Fund offers Class A and Class C shares, which are subject
to expenses pursuant to the Shareholder Servicing and Distribution Plan
described in Note 6.  Class A shares have a maximum front-end sales
charge of 5.50% that is included in the offering price of the Class A shares.
The Class C shares are subject to a CDSC for redemptions within one year
of purchase in accordance with the Strategic Fund’s prospectus.  The max-
imum CDSC is 1.00% based on the lesser of the original purchase price or
the value of such shares at the time of redemption.

2 Significant Accounting Policies The following is a summary of the signif-
icant accounting policies of the Funds:
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Security Valuation. The Funds’ securities, except short-term investments
with maturities of 60 days or less at the time of purchase and securities
traded on the NASDAQ NMS and Small Cap exchanges, are valued at
their market value as determined by their last sale price in the principal
market in which these securities are normally traded.  Lacking any sales,
the security is valued at the mean between the closing bid and ask price.
Securities traded on NASDAQ are valued at the NASDAQ Official
Closing Price (“NOCP”).  Short-term investments with remaining matu-
rities of 60 days or less at the time of purchase are valued at amortized cost,
which approximates market value, unless the Funds’ Board of Trustees
determines that this does not represent fair value.  The value of all other
securities, for which no quotations are readily available, is determined in
good faith by, or under procedures approved by, the Board of Trustees.  The
Board has adopted specific procedures for valuing portfolio securities and
delegated the implementation of these procedures to Olstein Capital
Management, L.P. (“Olstein” or the “Investment Manager”).  The proce-
dures authorize the Investment Manager to make all necessary determina-
tions regarding the fair value of a portfolio security and to report such
determinations to the Board of Trustees.  The Funds may also use inde-
pendent pricing services to assist in pricing portfolio securities.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 157,
“Fair Value Measurements” effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007.  SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a frame-
work for measuring fair value in accordance with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (“GAAP”), and expands disclosure about fair value
measurements.  The Funds have adopted FAS 157 effective July 1, 2008.
Management has determined that SFAS No. 157 had no material effect
on the Funds’ financial statements.

A summary of the fair value hierarchy under SFAS 157 is described below:

Various inputs are used in determining the value of the Funds’ invest-
ments.  These inputs are summarized in the three broad levels listed below:

Level 1 – Quoted prices in active markets for identical securities.
Level 2 – Other significant observable inputs (including quoted prices for

similar securities, interest rates, prepayment speeds, credit risk, etc.)
Level 3 – Significant unobservable inputs (including the Fund’s own

assumptions in determining the fair value of investments)
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The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not an indica-
tion of the risk associated with investing in those securities.

The following is a summary of the inputs used to value the Funds’ net
assets as of December 31, 2008:

Other Financial 
Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Instruments*

All Cap Value Fund $524,852,863 $35,993,899 $    — $560,846,762 $    —
Strategic Opportunities Fund 10,581,250 — — 10,581,250 —

*  Other financial instruments are derivative instruments not reflected in the Schedule of Investments, such as futures,
written options, forwards and swap contracts, which are valued at the unrealized appreciation  (depreciation) on the
instrument.

In March 2008, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 161,
“Disclosures about Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities”
(“SFAS 161”) was issued and is effective for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008.  SFAS 161 is intended to improve financial report-
ing for derivative instruments by requiring enhanced disclosure that
enables investors to understand how and why an entity uses derivatives,
how derivatives are accounted for, and how derivative instruments affect
an entity’s results of operations and financial position.  Management is
currently evaluating the implications of SFAS 161.

Federal Income Taxes. Each Fund intends to continue to qualify for treat-
ment as a “regulated investment company” under Subchapter M of the
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 and to distribute all of its taxable income
to its shareholders.  Therefore, no federal income tax provision has been
provided.

Distributions to Shareholders. Distributions of net investment income and
net realized gains, if any, are determined in accordance with income tax
regulations, which may differ from U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles.  These differences are either temporary or permanent in nature.
To the extent these differences are permanent, reclassifications are made
in the capital accounts in the period that the difference arises.

Generally, distributions are declared and paid at least annually.  The Funds
may utilize earnings and profits distributed to shareholders on redemption
of shares as part of the dividend paid deduction.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements. The preparation
of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
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accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period.  Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Other. Investment security transactions are accounted for on a trade date
basis.  The Funds use the specific identification method for determining
realized gain or loss on investments for both financial and federal income
tax reporting purposes. Dividend income and dividends on short positions
are recognized on the ex-dividend date or as soon as information is avail-
able to the Funds and interest income is recognized on an accrual basis.
Income, realized and unrealized gains or losses on investments are allocat-
ed to each class of shares based on each Fund’s relative net assets.  All dis-
counts and premiums are amortized using the effective interest method for
tax and financial reporting purposes.

Expenses. Expenses directly attributable to a class of shares, such as Rule
12b-1 distribution fees, are charged to that class.  Expenses that are not
attributable to a particular class are typically allocated within each Fund
among each class in proportion to their respective net assets.

Short Sales. Short sales are transactions in which the All Cap Value Fund
sells a security it does not own, in anticipation of a decline in the market
value of that security.  To complete such a transaction, the All Cap Value
Fund must borrow the security to deliver to the buyer upon the short sale;
the All Cap Value Fund then is obligated to replace the security borrowed
by purchasing it in the open market at some later date.  The All Cap Value
Fund will incur a loss if the market price of the security increases between
the date of the short sale and the date on which the All Cap Value Fund
replaces the borrowed security.  The All Cap Value Fund will realize a gain
if the security declines in value between those dates.  All short sales must
be fully collateralized.  The All Cap Value Fund maintains the collateral
in a segregated account consisting of cash, U.S. Government securities or
other liquid assets sufficient to collateralize the market value of its short
positions.  The All Cap Value Fund limits the value of short positions to
25% of its total assets.  At December 31, 2008, the All Cap Value Fund
had no short positions outstanding.  The Strategic Fund does not engage
in short sales.
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3 Purchases and Sales of Investment Securities During the six months
ended December 31, 2008, purchases and sales of investment securities
(excluding short-term investments) were as follows:

Purchases Sales
All Cap Value Fund $452,727,760 $557,515,372
Strategic Fund 6,422,710 6,597,387

The Funds did not purchase long-term U.S. Government securities as a
part of their investment strategy during the respective periods.

4 Tax Information At June 30, 2008, the components of accumulated earn-
ings/losses on a tax basis were as follows:

All Cap Strategic
Value Fund Opportunities Fund

Cost of Investments $1,166,958,596 $17,329,945
Gross unrealized appreciation $   75,010,432 $   535,931
Gross unrealized depreciation (243,736,672) (3,871,634)
Net unrealized depreciation $ (168,726,240) $ (3,335,703)
Undistributed ordinary income — —
Undistributed long-term capital gain 2,234,650 —
Total distributable earnings $ 2,234,650 $ —
Other accumulated losses $ (5,402,507) $ (1,396,813)
Total accumulated losses $ (171,894,097) $ (4,732,516)

The difference between book-basis and tax-basis net unrealized apprecia-
tion is attributable primarily to the tax deferral of losses on wash sales.

At June 30, 2008, the Funds deferred, on a tax basis, post-October losses
of:

All Cap Value Fund $5,010,296
Strategic Opportunities Fund 1,396,813

The tax components of dividends paid by the Funds during the periods
ended December 31, 2008 and June 30, 2008 were as follows:

Six Months Ended Year Ended
All Cap Value Fund December 31, 2008 June 30, 2008

Ordinary Income $        — $ 40,925,656
Long-Term Capital Gains $        — $207,774,942

Strategic Fund
Ordinary Income $        — $    107,135
Long-Term Capital Gains $        — $        —
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The Funds designate as long-term capital gain dividends, pursuant to
Internal Revenue Code Section 852(b)(3), the amount necessary to
reduce the earnings and profits of the Funds related to net capital gain to
zero for the tax year ended June 30, 2008.

Effective December 31, 2007, the Funds adopted Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48), “Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes”.  FIN 48 requires the evaluation of tax posi-
tions taken on previously filed tax returns or expected to be taken on
future returns.  These positions must meet a “more likely than not” stan-
dard that, based on the technical merits, have a more than fifty percent
likelihood of being sustained upon examination.  In evaluating whether a
tax position has met the recognition threshold, the Funds must presume
that the position will be examined by the appropriate taxing authority
that has full knowledge of all relevant information.  Tax positions not
deemed to meet the “more-likely-than-not” threshold are recorded as a
tax expense in the current year.

FIN 48 requires the Funds to analyze all open tax years, as defined by the
Statute of Limitations, for all major jurisdictions.  Open tax years are those
that are open for exam by taxing authorities.  As of December 31, 2008,
open tax years include the tax years ended June 30, 2004 through 2007.
The Funds have no examination in progress.

The Funds have reviewed all open tax years and major jurisdictions and
concluded that the adoption of FIN 48 resulted in no effect to the Funds’
financial position or results of operations.  There is no tax liability resulting
from unrecognized tax benefits relating to uncertain income tax positions
taken or expected to be taken on tax returns as of December 31, 2008.  The
Funds are also not aware of any tax positions for which it is reasonably pos-
sible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits will significantly
change in the next twelve months.  If applicable, the Funds would recog-
nize interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in “interest
expense” and penalties in “other expenses” on the statement of operations.

5 Investment Management Fee and Other Agreements The Funds
employ Olstein as the investment manager.  Pursuant to investment man-
agement agreements with the Funds, the Investment Manager selects
investments and supervises the assets of the Funds in accordance with the
investment objective, policies and restrictions of the Funds, subject to the
supervision and direction of the Board of Trustees.  For its services, the
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Investment Manager earns a monthly fee at the annual rate of 1.00% of
each Fund’s average daily net assets.  For the six months ended December
31, 2008, the All Cap Value Fund incurred investment management fees
of $3,996,428, with $467,502 payable to the Investment Manager as of
December 31, 2008.  For the same period, the Strategic Fund incurred
management fees of $59,859.  The Investment Manager has agreed to
contractually waive or reduce all or a portion of its management fee and,
if necessary, to bear certain other expenses to limit the annualized expens-
es of the Strategic Fund to 1.35%, exclusive of 12b-1 and shareholder serv-
icing fees, acquired fund fees and expenses, taxes, interest and non-routine
expenses.  The Investment Manager may seek reimbursement of its
waived fees and expenses borne for a rolling three-year period following
the fiscal year such fee waivers and expense reimbursements are incurred,
provided that the reimbursement by the Strategic Fund of the Investment
Manager will not cause total operating expenses to exceed the expense
cap as then may be in effect or the expense cap in place at the time of the
fee waiver.

Strategic Fund
Reimbursed/Absorbed Expenses Subject to Recovery by Adviser Until:
2010 $ 80,990
2011 97,379
2012 54,239
Total $232,608

Certain trustees and officers of the Trust are also officers of the Trust’s
Investment Manager.  Such trustees and officers are paid no fees by the
Trust for serving as trustees or officers of the Trust.

6 Shareholder Servicing and Distribution Plans Olstein (the “Distributor”)
has entered into a distribution and underwriting agreement with the Funds
dated August 18, 1995 (subsequently revised on July 29, 1999 to reflect the
additional class and further amended and restated effective October 1,
2007), under which the Distributor acts as underwriter to engage in activ-
ities designed to assist the Funds in securing purchasers for their shares.
The Funds have adopted Shareholder Servicing and Distribution Plans
pursuant to Rule 12b-1 under the 1940 Act (the “12b-1 Plans”).  Amounts
paid under the 12b-1 Plans may compensate the Distributor or others for
the activities in the promotion and distribution of each Fund’s shares and
for shareholder servicing.  The total amount that the All Cap Value Fund
will pay under the 12b-1 Plans for the Class C and Adviser Class shares are
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1.00% and 0.25%, respectively, per annum of the Fund’s average daily net
assets of Class C and Adviser Class shares.  For the six months ended
December 31, 2008, fees incurred by the All Cap Value Fund pursuant to
the 12b-1 Plans were $3,415,638 for Class C and $145,198 for Adviser
Class Shares.  The total amount that the Strategic Fund will pay under the
12b-1 Plans for the Class A and Class C shares are 0.25% and 1.00%,
respectively, per annum of the Fund’s average daily net assets of Class A
and Class C shares.  For the six months ended December 31, 2008, fees
incurred by the Strategic Fund pursuant to the 12b-1 Plans were $6,343 for
Class A and $34,484 for Class C shares.

During the six months ended December 31, 2008, the All Cap Value Fund
and the Strategic Fund paid no brokerage commissions to affiliated broker-
dealers in connection with purchases and sales of investment securities.

7 Fund Shares At December 31, 2008, there was an unlimited number of
shares of beneficial interest, $0.001 par value, authorized.  The following
table summarizes the activity in shares of each class of the Funds:

All Cap Value Fund
Six Months Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2008 June 30, 2008
Class C Class C

Shares Amount Shares Amount 

Shares sold 736,561 $7,490,992 2,713,119 $42,134,757

Shares issued to shareholders in
reinvestment of distributions — — 13,622,618 201,470,151

Shares redeemed (13,646,074) (132,393,432) (21,157,526) (303,885,715)

Net decrease (12,909,513) $(124,902,440) (4,821,789) $(60,280,807)

Shares Outstanding:

Beginning of period 74,348,707 79,170,496

End of period 61,439,194 74,348,707
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Six Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2008 June 30, 2008

Adviser Class Adviser Class

Shares Amount Shares Amount 

Shares sold 509,992 $5,648,661 1,517,645 $24,469,390

Shares issued to shareholders in
reinvestment of distributions — — 2,290,416 37,081,831

Shares redeemed (4,267,501) (44,990,967) (6,578,632) (102,667,943)

Net decrease (3,757,509) $(39,342,306) (2,770,571) $(41,116,722)

Shares Outstanding:

Beginning of period 12,112,785 14,883,356

End of period 8,355,276 12,112,785

Total Net Decrease $(164,244,746) $(101,397,529)

Strategic Opportunities Fund
Six Months Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2008 June 30, 2008
Class A Class A

Shares Amount Shares Amount 

Shares sold 110,669 $683,072 281,931 $2,981,465

Shares issued to shareholders in
reinvestment of distributions — — 4,495 46,524

Shares redeemed (89,073) (639,799) (296,474) (2,860,501)

Net increase (decrease) 21,596 $43,273 (10,048) $167,488

Shares Outstanding:

Beginning of period 714,119 724,167

End of period 735,715 714,119

Six Months Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2008 June 30, 2008

Class C Class C
Shares Amount Shares Amount 

Shares sold 184,419 $1,185,132 692,348 $7,016,237

Shares issued to shareholders in
reinvestment of distributions — — 5,135 52,888

Shares redeemed (252,246) (1,701,744) (364,835) (3,430,834)

Net increase (decrease) (67,827) $(516,612) 332,648 $3,638,291

Shares Outstanding:

Beginning of period 1,005,626 672,978

End of period 937,799 1,005,626

Total Net Increase (Decrease) $(473,339) $3,805,779
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8 Other Affiliates* Investments representing 5% or more of the outstand-
ing voting securities of a company held in the All Cap Value Fund’s port-
folio result in that company being considered an affiliated company of the
Fund, as defined in the 1940 Act.  The aggregate market value of all secu-
rities of affiliated companies as of December 31, 2008 amounted to
$16,698,090 representing 2.98% of net assets.  Transactions during the six
months ended December 31, 2008 in which the issuer was an “affiliated
person” were as follows:

Denny’s Corp.

June 30, 2008

Balance

Shares 8,153,900

Cost $38,403,012

Gross Additions

Shares 525,600

Cost $1,186,952

Gross Deductions

Shares 288,500

Cost $1,593,133

December 31, 2008

Balance

Shares 8,391,000

Cost $37,996,831

Realized loss $(1,004,169)

Investment income $      —

* As a result of the Fund’s beneficial ownership of the common stock of these companies, regulators require that the
Fund state that it may be deemed an affiliate of the respective issuer.  The Fund disclaims that the “affiliated per-
sons” are affiliates of the Distributor, Adviser, Fund, Trust, or any other client of the Adviser.

Note: Schedule may not roll forward, as the schedule only reflects activity during the time the Fund was deemed an affil-
iate (held  more than 5% of a stock’s outstanding securities).

9 Line of Credit The All Cap Value Fund has a $50 million uncommitted
line of credit with U.S. Bank, N.A. (the “Bank”) to be used for liquidity
purposes.  The interest rate on any borrowings is the Bank’s announced
prime rate.  During the six months ended December 31, 2008, the Fund
did not draw upon the line of credit.
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10 Indemnifications Under the Trust’s organizational documents, its Officers
and Trustees are indemnified against certain liabilities arising out of the
performance of their duties to the Funds.  In addition, in the normal
course of business, the Funds enter into contracts that provide general
indemnifications to other parties.  The Funds’ maximum exposure under
these arrangements is unknown as this would involve future claims that
may be made against the Funds that have not yet occurred.  However, the
Funds have not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these contracts and
expect the risk of loss to be remote.

T H E  O L S T E I N  F U N D S



59

T H E  O L S T E I N  F U N D S

T H E  O L S T E I N  F U N D S
Additional Information

P R O X Y  V O T I N G

The Board of Trustees of the Trust, on behalf of the Funds, has delegated all
proxy voting responsibilities related to the portfolio securities held by the
Funds to the Investment Manager.  A description of the Funds’ proxy voting
policies and procedures is available without charge, upon request, by calling
toll-free 1-800-799-2113.  A description is also included in the Funds’
Statement of Additional Information, which is available on the SEC’s website
at http://www.sec.gov.

The Investment Manager’s proxy voting record for the Funds for annual peri-
ods ending June 30 each year will be available to shareholders.  The proxy vot-
ing record is available, without charge, upon request by calling, toll-free, 
1-800-799-2113 and on the SEC website at http://www.sec.gov.

P O R T F O L I O  H O L D I N G S

The Funds include complete schedules of their portfolio holdings in the annu-
al and semi-annual reports.  The Funds are required to file complete schedules
of portfolio holdings with the SEC for the first and third fiscal quarters on Form
N-Q.  Once filed, the Form N-Q is available, without charge, upon request on
the SEC’s website at http://www.sec.gov.  Copies of Form N-Q can also be
obtained by (i) visiting the SEC’s Public Reference Room in Washington, DC
(information on the operation of the Public Reference Room may be obtained
by calling 1-800-SEC-0330); (ii) sending your request and a duplicating fee to
the SEC’s Public Reference Room, Washington, DC 20549-0102; or (iii) send-
ing your request electronically to http://www.publicinfo@sec.gov.

A P P R O V A L  O F  I N V E S T M E N T  A D V I S O R Y  
C O N T R A C T S  F O R  T H E  O L S T E I N  F U N D S

At a meeting held on September 3, 2008, the Board of Trustees of The Olstein
Funds renewed, for an additional year, the investment management agree-
ments under which Olstein Capital Management, L.P. (“the Adviser”) man-
ages The Olstein All Cap Value Fund (“All Cap Fund”) and the Olstein
Strategic Opportunities Fund (“Strategic Fund”).  The renewals were approved
by the full Board, as well as by the Trustees who are not “interested persons”(as



60

such term is defined in the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended) of
The Olstein Funds and who are not parties to the investment management
agreement or interested persons of any such party (“independent Trustees”).

In reaching this decision, the Board of Trustees evaluated information fur-
nished throughout the year at regular board meetings, in addition to informa-
tion specifically furnished for the annual board meeting held to consider such
renewal.  Such information included reports on the Funds’ investment per-
formance, expenses, portfolio composition and sales and redemptions, along
with related financial statements, information about the scope and quality of
services provided by the Adviser, as well as periodic reports relating to com-
pliance with the Funds’ investment policies and restrictions. The information
furnished annually to the Board of Trustees also included special reports com-
paring the Funds’ investment performance and expenses with those of other
mutual funds deemed comparable to the Funds.

The independent Trustees conducted executive sessions prior to the September
meeting at which they reviewed and discussed the materials provided by man-
agement and had discussed their responsibilities in connection with the pro-
posed renewal of the investment management agreements with their independ-
ent legal counsel.  In reviewing the matter, the independent Trustees considered
the following factors in their executive session:  (1) the nature and quality of the
services provided by the Adviser; (2) a comparison of each Fund’s performance
versus its respective benchmark indices and comparable funds; (3) periodic
meetings with the Adviser’s portfolio managers to judge competence and deter-
mine their responsibilities; (4) the Adviser’s costs for providing the services and
the profitability of the business to the Adviser; (5) economies of scale in rela-
tion to the fee schedule; and (6) an evaluation of soft dollar benefits and any
other benefits to the Adviser or the Fund as a result of the relationship.

The independent Trustees met separately with the Funds’ portfolio managers
to learn about their working relationship and respective responsibilities.  The
independent Trustees were satisfied with the qualifications and capabilities of
the portfolio managers.

In reviewing the nature and quality of services provided by the Adviser, the
independent Trustees recognized that the Olstein investment philosophy and
its proprietary “private equity market valuation” techniques and proprietary
assessment of “quality of earnings” were unique and would be difficult to
replace.  The independent Trustees noted the Adviser’s commitment to the
research necessary to support such techniques by the Adviser’s recent hiring
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of an additional analyst.  The independent Trustees acknowledged that the
Adviser devoted significant personnel time to managing the Funds because
the Funds now comprise substantially all of the Adviser’s assets under man-
agement.  The independent Trustees further acknowledged that the portfolio
management team was personally committed to the Funds through their sig-
nificant personal investment in the Funds. The independent Trustees
expressed their satisfaction with the level of information about the Funds and
the Adviser that they received throughout the year.  In particular, they noted
that they were satisfied with the information provided by the Adviser in
response to their Section 15(c) information request.  In addition to the
investment management services provided by the Adviser, the independent
Trustees noted that, among other things, the Adviser interacted with legal
counsel and the Trustees; prepared Board materials and prospectuses; provid-
ed chief compliance officer support, overhead and other regulatory compli-
ance assistance; conducted service provider oversight and due diligence, and
assisted in distribution.  The independent Trustees expressed their satisfaction
with such services.

The independent Trustees stated that it was important that management have
high ethical standards and they were confident in the Adviser’s integrity and
noted that, although other fund groups had been plagued by scandal in recent
years, Olstein was scandal-free.  The independent Trustees expressed appreci-
ation for the compliance efforts of the Funds’ Chief Compliance Officer and
his staff.

The independent Trustees further reported that they had reviewed the Lipper
peer group performance comparison data provided in their Board materials
through June 30, 2008 for the All Cap Fund, which showed that its perform-
ance was in the top quartile of actively managed equity funds in the ten-year
category but in the bottom quartile in the one-year, three-year, and five-year
categories.  The independent Trustees also reviewed the performance of the
All Cap Fund through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 compared to the
S&P 500® Index and the Russell 3000® Index.  The Fund’s ten-year and “since
inception” performance had outperformed both indices, but its one-year, three-
year, and five-year performance had underperformed both indices.  The inde-
pendent Trustees were satisfied with the All Cap Fund’s performance for the
ten-year and longer periods but noted the underperformance during the short-
er periods.  The independent Trustees acknowledged the main reasons for the
recent underperformance in the unusual market environment, and observed
that the inherently contrarian nature of a value approach frequently involved
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periods of underperformance that could sometimes be lengthy due to the value
investor’s anticipated investment horizon.  The Trustees remained impressed
with the Adviser’s dedication to its investment management style and practice
and to the Fund and its shareholders.

The independent Trustees also reported that they had reviewed the Lipper peer
group performance comparison data provided in their Board materials through
June 30, 2008 for the Strategic Fund which showed that its performance was
in the bottom quartile in the one-year category (the only Lipper time period
for which it has been in existence).  The independent Trustees also reviewed
such Fund’s performance through the fiscal year ended June 30, 2008 compared
to the S&P 500® Index and Russell 2500® Index.  The Fund significantly
underperformed both indices for the one-year time period.  The independent
Trustees were not satisfied with performance of this Fund, but noted that the
Fund had only been in existence for about two years and, because of its size and
the difficult market environment for most of the Fund’s life, such dissatisfac-
tion was tempered by the realities of the investment process.

The independent Trustees noted that the poor performance records for the
three-year and five-year periods for the All Cap Fund were principally the
result of the 27% loss for the year ended June 30, 2008 and that, as recently as
2005, the All Cap Fund had one of the best ten-year records in the industry.
The poor fiscal year 2008 performance was the result, according to Mr. Olstein,
of under-investment relative to peers in energy stocks and over-investment rel-
ative to peers in financial stocks, but Mr. Olstein remained convinced that
these securities would eventually deliver excellent returns and that the All
Cap Fund’s performance record should improve.  The independent Trustees
noted that the All Cap Fund was in the 15th percentile of all Large Cap Blend
funds between August 1, 2008 and August 31, 2008 and in the 35th percentile
for the three months ended August 31, 2008 according to Morningstar® data.

The independent Trustees reviewed a Lipper comparison of expenses and
investment advisory fees which showed that the All Cap Fund’s total expense
ratios were in the highest quartile of its Lipper category and the Fund’s adviso-
ry fee was also in the highest quartile.  The Adviser stated that it had no plans
to limit expenses or waive any fee for the All Cap Fund.  The independent
Trustees acknowledged that the expense ratios and advisory fees were high
(and, in the case of the expense ratio, had trended higher in recent years due
to a declining asset base), but noted that the Fund’s Adviser Class was closer
to the average expense ratio due to its lower 12b-1 fee.
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The Lipper comparison of expenses and investment advisory fees for the
Strategic Fund showed that the total expense ratios were in the highest quar-
tile and the second highest quartile, respectively, of its Lipper category and the
Fund’s advisory fee was also in the highest quartile.  However, the Adviser
agreed to limit expenses and waive fees on the same terms as are currently in
existence through October 28, 2009.

The independent Trustees reviewed the Adviser’s audited financial statements
and considered the Adviser’s profitability for the last three years.  Mr. Robert
Olstein pointed out that the Adviser makes significant payments out of its own
resources for shareholder servicing and other revenue sharing payments and
stated that such payments were not contemplated when the advisory fee was
originally established.  A discussion ensued about the nature and extent of rev-
enue sharing.  The independent Trustees reported that they discussed the chal-
lenges of retaining assets in the Funds in light of market weakness and the
Funds’ performance.  The Adviser reported that it expected a continuing
decrease in profits due to reduced asset levels in the Funds and increased oper-
ating expenses, including, in particular, increased legal, compliance and regu-
latory costs.  The independent Trustees were satisfied that the Adviser had the
financial resources to continue to properly operate the Funds.

Several of the independent Trustees expressed the belief that the unique serv-
ices provided by the Adviser, the integrity of the Adviser, and the excellent
long-term performance of the All Cap Fund warranted a premium fee, and as a
result, the independent Trustees considered the fees and expenses of both Funds
to be reasonable.  The Board discussed possibly implementing fee breakpoints
now for future asset levels for the All Cap Fund, but agreed to evaluate poten-
tial breakpoint fee levels each year after learning about all relevant factors
affecting the Adviser’s profitability.  Mr. Robert Olstein noted that he believed
that economies of scale had not been reached at current asset levels but agreed
to implement fee breakpoints to pass on economies of scale in the future.

The independent Trustees also considered the fall out or ancillary benefits to
the Adviser including the Adviser’s receipt of compensation in connection
with its distribution and sales efforts; receipt of economic and fundamental
research reports through soft dollar arrangements; receipt of proprietary
research products and reports from broker-dealers as a benefit to best execution
trading relationships with broker-dealers; and participation with the Trust in a
joint errors and omissions/directors and officers liability insurance.
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Based on the foregoing factors, after deliberation, and after considering the
long, historical relationship between the Adviser and the Funds, the inde-
pendent Trustees concluded that the management fees paid by the All Cap
Fund and the Strategic Fund were fair and reasonable in light of the nature and
the quality of the services provided by the Adviser, its costs and each Fund’s
current and reasonably anticipated asset levels and that the Management
Agreements for both Funds should be approved and continued.
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